
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
  00 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020 
 

 
DUE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 RESIDENTS ARE ENCOURAGED 

TO ATTEND THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING VIA THE APPLICATION, ZOOM. 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION: 

Topic: May 26, 2020 Council Meeting. Time: 7:00 PM Central Time 

Meeting ID: 208 907 3779 Internet Link: https://zoom.us/j/2089073779 One tap mobile: 

+13126266799,,2089073779# US (Chicago) Dial-in:1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BY EMAILING DBARTLEY@PERU.IL.US (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 
 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M.     
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES OF MAY 4, 2020 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF MAY 11, 2020 
 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
GENERAL FUND AND MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS REPORT FOR MARCH 2020 
 

https://zoom.us/j/2089073779


SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS FOR FEBRUARY 2020 
 
UTILITY FUND REPORT FOR MARCH 2020 
 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE SERVICE ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR MARCH 2020 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN 

 
1. FINANCE AND SAFETY SERVICES   Chairman Radtke, Sapienza,  

       Payton, Buffo & Mayor Harl 
  
 DISBURSEMENTS for May 27, 2020 
  

Discuss/approve contribution to IVCIL for curb address painting fundraiser 
 
 

2. PUBLIC SERVICES     Chairman Waldorf, Ferrari,  
       Lukosus, Ballard & Mayor Harl 
 
Motion to authorize the execution of an IDOT Highway Permit for the Arby’s Truck Sewer 
project 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BORE CROSSING UNDERNEATH ACCESS CONTROLLED 
INTERSTATE (ARBY’S TRUCK SEWER) 
 
 

REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TIF DISTRICT 
REDEVELPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINIOS 
AND JOHN P. RAMIREZ AND X-ERCISE SCIENCE, INC. (PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT) 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINIOS AND ILLINOIS 
VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513 (PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT) 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE DEDICATION OF LAND FOR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-
WAY TO THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION ON THE PETITION 
OF ILLINOIS KINDNESS THREE LLC CONCERNING PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF DONLAR AVENUE AND UNYTITE DRIVE IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 4.19 AND 12.03 OF THE CITY OF PERU ZONING ORDINANCE 
TO ALLOW FOR THE CO-LOCATION OF ADULT-USE CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS AND TO PROVIDE 
A SPECIAL USE FOR ADULT-USE CANNABIS INFUSER ORGANIZATIONS AND ADULT-USE CANNABIS 
TRANSPORTING ORGANIZATIONS IN M-2 MANUFACTURING DISTRICTS 
 



AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF ILLINOIS KINDNESS 
THREE LLC CONCERNING PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
DONLAR AVENUE AND UNYTITE DRIVE IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION ON THE PETITION 
OF ANDREW LAMPS CONCERNING PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 38TH STREET AND 
EAST OF PROGRESS BOULEVARD IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AND VARIANCE AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF 
ANDREW LAMPS CONCERNING PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 38TH STREET AND 
EAST OF PROGRESS BOULEVARD IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION ON THE PETITION 
OF JONATHAN CHAMLIN D/B/A VERMILLION PARTNERS CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
2700 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF JONATHAN CHAMLIN 
D/B/A VERMILLION PARTNERS CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2700 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION ON THE PETITION 
OF THE CITY OF PERU CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2650 NORTH PEORIA STREET, PERU, 
IL 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 11.05(d) OF THE CITY OF PERU ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
PROVIDE A SPECIAL USE FOR PUBLIC BUILDINGS ERECTED BY A GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY IN B-4 
HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICTS 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AND VARIANCE AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF THE 
CITY OF PERU CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2650 NORTH PEORIA STREET, PERU, IL 
 
A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT TO ASSIST SALON PATRICE, 1525 PEORIA STREET, PERU, ILLINOIS, 
WITH AN APPLICATION FOR A DOWNSTATE SMALL BUSINESS STABILIZATION PROGRAM GRANT 
($15,280.00) 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ISSUE TEMPORARY CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ENCROACHMENT PERMITS TO CITY BUSINESSES FOR THE DURATION OF THE COVID-19 
GUBERNATORIAL DISASTER PROCLAMATION 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING MAY 1, 2019 AND 
ENDING APRIL 30, 2020, BOTH INCLUSIVE 
 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS     
 
 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 



ITEM NO. 1 Communication from Daniel and Ann Baumgartner requesting variances for property located 
at 1916 Fulton Street, Peru, IL 

ITEM NO. 2 Communication from Illinois Valley Green requesting special use for property with Assessor 
Pin Number 17-18-414-000, generally located at the south end of Terminal Road. 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 



CITY OF PERU SPECIAL MEETING MAY 4, 2020 
   

 1 

A special meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by City Clerk Dave Bartley in the Peru City Council 
Chambers on Monday, May 4, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza (remotely), 
Payton, and Ballard present; Alderman Buffo absent; Mayor Harl present. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MINUTES 
 
Clerk Bartley presented the minutes of the public hearing held on April 13, 2020. Alderman Ferrari made a motion 
the minutes be received and placed on file. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion; motion carried.  
 
REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-14 
 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT TO ASSIST PRO MUSCLE CARE INC., 2116 4TH STREET, PERU, 
ILLINOIS WITH AN APPLICATION FOR A DOWNSTATE SMALL BUSINESS STABILIZATION 
PROGRAM GRANT ($22,420.24) 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Lukosus seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard voting aye; Alderman Buffo absent; motion carried.  

 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-15  
 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT TO ASSIST WATER STREET PUB, INC., 1820 4TH STREET, PERU, 
ILLINOIS WITH AN APPLICATION FOR A DOWNSTATE SMALL BUSINESS STABILIZATION 
PROGRAM GRANT ($20,291.46) 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Sapienza seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard voting aye; Alderman Buffo absent; motion carried.  

 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-16 
 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT TO ASSIST DEANGELO’S HAIR STYLING, 407 5TH STREET, PERU, 
ILLINOIS WITH AN APPLICATION FOR A DOWNSTATE SMALL BUSINESS STABILIZATION 
PROGRAM GRANT ($24,541.00) 
 
Alderman Ferrari made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Ballard seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard voting aye; Alderman Buffo absent; motion carried.  
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF PERU SPECIAL MEETING MAY 4, 2020 
   

 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17  
 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT TO ASSIST NICOLE NORRIS MD MEDICAL SPA, LLC, 2220 
MARQUETTE ROAD, PERU, ILLINOIS WITH AN APPLICATION FOR A DOWNSTATE SMALL 
BUSINESS STABILIZATION PROGRAM GRANT ($25,000.00) 
 
Alderman Ferrari made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Lukosus seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard voting aye; Alderman Buffo absent; motion carried.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Radtke seconded the motion and motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned 5:36 p.m.  
 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MAY 11, 2020 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Scott J. Harl in the Peru City Council 
Chambers on Monday, May 11, 2020 at 7:03 p.m. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard 
and Buffo present; Mayor Harl present. 
 
An invocation prayer was presented via zoom by Pastor Alex Garncarz of Zion United Methodist Church 
 
All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
Mayor Harl asked to resume the presentation by Leopardo regarding the proposed police station. 
 
City Engineer Eric Carls asked for council Q & A session.  
 
Alderman Radtke asked Police Chief Bernabei what level of involvement we have had from the police department 
between the police chief and the officers and what kind of buy in do we have in terms of the building and design. 
Chief Bernabei thanked Alderman Radtke and stated if it wasn’t for COVID-19, he guaranteed the council would 
have every single employed police officer in attendance as they have been looking forward to this night for a very 
long time. Chief Bernabei stated the buy-in is obviously there because the council asked for a team to be put 
together with the Mayor, Alderman Lukosus and Alderman Payton having front row seats, attending all the meetings 
and it is important to add that it is not any one person’s police department, adding that he will not be in the new 
building long but over the course of the next 70 years, there will be a lot of officers working out of that building. 
Police Chief Doug Bernabei stated they put together a team consisting of  Deputy Chief Bob Pyszka, Commander 
Sarah Raymond, Detective Sergeant Dennis Hocking, two senior Patrol Officers Amy Sines and Nick Biagioni 
along with Michelle Wagner, records clerk, noting every element of the department is represented. Police Chief 
Doug Bernabei stated it was stressed not to raise taxes, don’t go over the top, but get a building that will be good for 
the future. 
 
Police Chief Doug Bernabei commended City Engineer Eric Carls for his efforts and acknowledged the expertise of 
Basalay Cary and Alstadt and MWL. Police Chief Doug Bernabei stated he is excited for the generations to come. 
 
Alderman Lukosus thanked City Engineer Eric Carls for his considerable efforts and acknowledged this is a legacy 
project for all of us. 
 
Alderman Waldorf thanked City Engineer Eric Carls and Finance Officer Justin Miller for their efforts. 
 
Alderman Payton thanked the professionals of Leopardo, Basalay Cary and Alstadt and MWL. 
 
Alderman Buffo stated as a former police officer, he is impressed with the thought process put into the design. 
 
Treasurer Powell asked about square footage 32,000 was reported by Ms. McMillen. 
 
Mayor Harl asked Finance Officer Justin Miller to outline the recent bond savings. Finance Officer Justin Miller 
noted approximately $1,000,000 per year of bond payments that have recently been retired. Mayor Harl also noted 
the annual savings of nearly $300,00 per year from IVRD. 
 
City Engineer Eric Carls detailed the process through a needs analysis for space based on a question from Treasurer 
Jackson Powell. 
 
Finance Officer Justin discussed finance options with bonding in separate segments or borrowing in separate 
segments.  
 
Alderman Radtke expressed his confidence in the city’s policies enacted to support the financial commitment.  



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MAY 11, 2020 
   

 2 

Finance Officer Justin Miller noted our Moody’s AA3 rating and noted the following funding options: 
• Traditional bonding 
• Working with local banks  

 
Alderman Payton stated he supports local fund option. 
 
City Engineer Eric Carls stated he strongly believes that this is a local stimulus project and the timing for bidding 
should be very favorable. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Mayor Harl presented the minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 13, 2020. Alderman Ferrari made a motion that 
the minutes be received and placed on file. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
Mayor Harl presented the Police Department Report for April 2020. Alderman Buffo made a motion the report be 
received and placed on file. Alderman Payton seconded the motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Buffo presented the following disbursements for payment on May 13, 2020: 
 

FUND NAME     TOTAL EXPENSES 
 
 General Fund $939,768.96 

 Insurance Fund 31,407.84 

 Utility Fund 1,097,683.65 

 Airport Fund 28,812.40 

 Total $2,097,672.85 

Alderman Buffo made a motion that the report be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in the usual manner. 
Alderman Payton seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, 
Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Council discussed annual investment of $13,243.00 to North Central Illinois Economic Development Corporation 
(NCIEDC). Mayor Harl expressed his concern with an extremely short turnaround on DCEO requests. Mayor Harl 
also noted no return call from the current director and is not in favor of the contribution. Due to lack of a motion, the 
item died on the floor. 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
Alderman Lukosus made a motion to seek bids for new transformer for Eakas. Alderman Waldorf seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to approve quote from Ladzinski Cement Finishing Co., Inc. in the amount of 
$36,547.00 for apron and taxiway at the Illinois Valley Regional Airport. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. 
City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard 
and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
 
 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MAY 11, 2020 
   

 3 

REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-18 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN TRI-COUNTY OPPORTUNITIES COUNCIL COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT 
PROGRAM AND THE CITY OF PERU 
 
Alderman Radtke made a motion the resolution be adopted as written and read. Alderman Buffo seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
City Clerk Dave Bartley presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 6473 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 6471 ENTITLED: “AN ORDINANCE FIXING WAGES 
FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINIOS COMMENCING MAY 1, 2020 AND ENDING 
APRIL 30, 2020 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Radtke seconded the 
motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, 
Ballard and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a proposed proclamation proclaiming May 17-23, 2020 as Safe Boating Week. Alderman 
Ferrari made a motion the proclamation be received and placed on file. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion; 
motion carried. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Alderman Waldorf made a motion to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute Guaranteed Maximum Price 
(GMP) documents from Leopardo for the Peru Police Station. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion. City Clerk 
Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ferrari, Waldorf, Lukosus, Radtke, Sapienza, Payton, Ballard and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 
 
Council received and opened a Request for Qualifications for the Halm Property on May Road. One RFQ was 
received from Reality Link and turned over to City Engineer, Eric Carls, for review. 
 
Alderman Buffo stated he wanted to double down his desire the council should work to develop a plan to push 
against Governor Pritzker to reopen our city and county. Alderman Buffo also suggested working with the LaSalle 
County State’s Attorney to draft a county wide plan. Alderman Buffo stated he wants to find a way to reopen 
activities in the parks such as batting cages, tennis courts and ball diamonds. 
 
Mayor Harl noted there is a letter prepared by a group of mayors on the governor’s desk to promote returning to 
normal and stated his concern is legality and not risk liability.  
 
Mayor Harl read a thank you note card from the Right Spice regarding the waiving of liquor license fees. 
 
Mayor Harl noted the hanging of graduate’s banner and the scheduled recognition photo on Wednesday at 10:00 
a.m. 
 
 
  



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MAY 11, 2020 
   

 4 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Alderman Lukosus reported the annual TBM Avengers event is being moved to Terra Haute, IN for one year due to 
COVID-19. 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a petition from John and Gina Atkins requesting a variance for property located at  
1916 Fulton Street. Alderman Waldorf made a motion the petition be received, placed on file and referred to the  
Planning/Zoning Commission for review and recommendation. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion; motion  
carried. 
 
Clerk Bartley presented a petition from Jeremy and Nicole Moorman requesting variance for property located at 203  
Calhoun Street. Alderman Lukosus made a motion the petition be received, placed on file and referred to the  
Planning/Zoning Commission for review and recommendation. Alderman Lukosus seconded the motion; motion  
carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Alderman Ferrari made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion and motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned 8:22 p.m.  
 
 







































































CITY OF PERU SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS            2019-2020

2019-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr) 2020-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr)

Jan-Use tax 21,582.52      29,448.57         
Jan-Telecom tax 16,592.24      13,397.91         
Jan-Sales 420,893.97    445,739.54       
Jan-Home Rule 264,705.97    272,983.36       
Jan-Cannabis Use -                 961.33              
Jan-Total 723,774.70    723,774.70      (60,020.96)     762,530.71       762,530.71      38,756.01           

Feb-Use tax 24,863.37      25,591.24         
Feb-Telecom tax 15,688.82      14,330.52         
Feb-Sales 437,638.05    587,835.18       
Feb-Home Rule 269,504.18    277,215.04       
Feb-Cannabis Use -                 485.10              
Feb-Total 747,694.42    1,471,469.12   23,960.39      905,457.08       1,667,987.79   157,762.66         

Mar-Use tax 28,265.28      
Mar-Telecom tax 15,965.06      
Mar-Sales 526,712.53    
Mar-Home Rule 331,598.41    
Mar-Cannabis Use
Mar-Total 902,541.28    2,374,010.40   (20,409.17)     -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Apr-Use tax 26,753.50      
Apr-Telecom tax 15,222.40      
Apr-Sales 532,825.45    
Apr-Home Rule 340,164.21    
Apr-Cannabis Use
Apr-Total 914,965.56    3,288,975.96   (4,708.47)       -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

May-Use tax 26,869.09      
May-Telecom tax 15,333.16      
May-Sales 549,364.75    
May-Home Rule 357,681.81    
May-Cannabis Use
May-Total 949,248.81    4,238,224.77   (9,380.97)       -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Jun-Use tax 27,315.17      
Jun-Telecom tax 14,796.42      
Jun-Sales 532,566.53    
Jun-Home Rule 347,510.49    
Jun-Cannabis Use
Jun-Total 922,188.61    5,160,413.38   (101,306.56)   -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Jul-Use tax 28,081.36      
Jul-Telecom tax 14,603.38      
Jul-Sales 569,297.97    
Jul-Home Rule 364,610.84    
Jul-Cannabis Use
Jul-Total 976,593.55    6,137,006.93   49,921.82      -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Aug-Use tax 26,903.49      
Aug-Telecom tax 14,249.96      
Aug-Sales 543,289.39    
Aug-Home Rule 342,666.94    
Aug-Cannabis Use
Aug-Total 927,109.78    7,064,116.71   45,074.97      -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

1



CITY OF PERU SALES, HOME RULE, USE AND TELECOMMUNICATION TAX RECEIPTS            2019-2020

2019-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr) 2020-HRT 1.0% YTD Total Incr (Decr)

Sep-Use tax 30,131.62      
Sep-Telecom tax 13,785.76      
Sep-Sales 520,730.13    
Sep-Home Rule 332,274.55    
Sep-Cannabis Use
Sep-Total 896,922.06    7,961,038.77   62,438.04      -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Oct-Use tax 33,083.01      
Oct-Telecom tax 14,577.93      
Oct-Sales 546,893.59    
Oct-Home Rule 353,122.13    
Oct-Cannabis Use
Oct-Total 947,676.66    8,908,715.43   65,093.54      -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Nov-Use tax 30,993.84      
Nov-Telecom tax 13,764.84      
Nov-Sales 533,823.16    
Nov-Home Rule 350,721.73    
Nov-Cannabis Use
Nov-Total 929,303.57    9,838,019.00   12,394.15      -                    1,667,987.79   -                      

Dec-Use tax 42,527.93      
Dec-Telecom tax 15,772.21      
Dec-Sales 583,418.33    
Dec-Home Rule 385,806.99    
Dec-Cannabis Use
Dec-Total 1,027,525.46 10,865,544.46    (7,298.98)       -                    1,667,987.79      -                      

TOTAL 10,865,544.46    55,757.80      1,667,987.79      196,518.67         

BREAKDOWN

2019 Incr over prev yr 2020 Incr over prev yr

Use Tax 347,370.18    14.9% 55,039.81         

Telecom tax 180,352.18    -14.3% 27,728.43         

Sales Tax 6,297,453.85 1.6% 1,033,574.72    

HRT-Parkside 2,020,184.13 -1.4% 275,099.20       
HRT-Infrastucture 2,020,184.13 -1.4% 275,099.20       

Cannabis Use 1,446.43           

*Loss due to State Adm fees* 62,291.44      * 4,207.23           

2































Peru Hunteer Ambulance Service Inc. 
111 Fifth Street — Peru, IL 61354 — (815) 223-9111 — Fax (815) 223-1590 

Proudly serving the citizens of Peru— La Salle Peru Township Dimmick Township 

To: 
	

Mayor Han l and Aldermen, City of Peru 

From: 
	

Brent C. Hanson, Executive Director 

Subject: 
	Activity Summary for Month of March 2020 

Date: 
	

Friday, April 24, 2020 

The Peru Volunteer Ambulance Service responded to two hundred ninety-nine (299) 
patient/calls during the month of March. The two hundred ninety-nine (299) patient/calls 
included one hundred fifty-six (160) emergencies for Peru, seven (7) emergencies for Dimmick, 
two (2) emergencies for Peru Township, and one hundred thirty-three (133) transfers. Of the one 
hundred sixty (160) emergencies, one hundred five (105) patients were transported, forty-eight 
(48) patients refused treatment, four (4) were disregarded, and three (3) were stand-bys. 

Peru Volunteer Ambulance Service, Inc. responded to five (5) Mutual Aid requests with 
La Salle Ambulance and one (1) Moto Cross Stand-by. 

The total mileage logged was 13405 miles for the month of March. 
- 

BCH:seb 

• 



















 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PERU 
 

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT  
 
 

TIF REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

by and between 
 

THE CITY OF PERU, LA SALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS  
 

and  
 

JOHN P. RAMIREZ and X-ERCISE SCIENCE, INC.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     , 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  2 | 16  
 

CITY OF PERU 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT  

 
TIF REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

by and between 
THE CITY OF PERU  

and  
JOHN P. RAMIREZ and X-ERCISE SCIENCE, INC. 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (including Exhibit 1) is entered into this ___ day of __________, 2020, by 
the City of Peru (“City”), an Illinois Home-Rule Municipal Corporation, LaSalle County, Illinois; 
and John P. Ramirez and X-ercise Science, an Illinois Corporation, (hereinafter collectively the 
“Developer”). 
 

PREAMBLE  
 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to promote the health, safety, and welfare of the City and its 
citizens, and to prevent the spread of blight and deterioration and inadequate public facilities, by 
promoting the development of private investment property thereby increasing the tax base of the 
City and providing employment for its citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City is a home-rule unit of local government as provided under Illinois law, 
including but not limited to the State of Illinois Constitution, Article VII, Section 6; that as a Home-
Rule Municipality, the City has the power, amongst other things, to regulate for the protection of the 
public health, safety, morals and welfare, business and development, and to further, amongst other 
things, provide for protection and offset against potential impact upon the resources of the City in 
reference to proposed business development; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/8-1-2.5 a municipality may expend funds for economic 
development purposes to commercial enterprises that are necessary or desirable for the promotion 
of economic development within the municipality; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4 et 
seq., as amended (the “Act”), the City has the authority to provide incentives to owners or 
prospective owners of real property to develop, redevelop, and rehabilitate such property by 
reimbursing the owner for certain costs from resulting increases in real estate tax revenues and enter 
into contracts with developers necessary or incidental to the implementation of its redevelopment 
plan pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-4(b) and (j); and  
 
WHEREAS, the City, recognizing the need to foster the development, expansion and revitalization 
of certain properties which are vacant, underutilized or obsolete or a combination thereof, adopted 
Tax Increment Financing and established a Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Area under 
the Act known as the Peru Downtown TIF District (the “TIF District”) on January 7, 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, included in the Redevelopment Area is property acquired by the Developer which is 
located at 830 Harrison Street, Peru, Illinois (PIN 17-18-403-002) (the “Property”); and  
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  3 | 16  
 

WHEREAS, the Developer has acquired said Property and plans to renovate the existing building 
located on said Property for the purpose of operating a fitness center (“Project”); and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City to encourage economic development which will increase the 
real estate tax base of the City and the tax base of other taxing bodies, which increased incremental 
taxes will be used, in part, to finance incentives to assist development within the Tax Increment 
Financing District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Developer’s Project is consistent with the TIF Plan and with the land uses of the 
City as adopted; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5/11-74.4-4(b) of the Act, the City may make and enter into all 
contracts with property owners, developers, tenants, overlapping taxing bodies, and other necessary 
or incidental to the implementation and furtherance of the Redevelopment Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5/11-74.4-4(j) of the Act, the City may incur redevelopment 
project costs and reimburse developers who incur redevelopment project costs authorized by a 
redevelopment agreement and further defined in Section 5/11-74.4-3(q) of the Act, including those 
Estimated TIF Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs as herein listed in the attached Exhibit 2 of 
this Redevelopment Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Developer has determined that the Project requires the incentives detailed herein 
and has requested that incentives for the development be provided by the City from incremental 
increases in real estate taxes of the City generated from its Project and the City has agreed to provide 
such incentives; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Developer requested that incentives for the development be provided by the City 
from incremental increases in real estate taxes of the City generated from its Project and the City 
agreed to such incentives; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that this Project requires the incentives requested as set forth 
herein and that said Project will, as a part of the Plan, promote the health, safety and welfare of the 
City and its citizens by attracting private investment to prevent blight and deterioration and to 
generally enhance the economy of the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the conditions of the Property and has reason to believe that the 
cots of the necessary public and private improvements incurred by the Developer in furtherance of 
the Project are eligible project costs under the Act and are consistent with the Redevelopment Plan 
of the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that the City shall reimburse the Developer for a portion of its 
Redevelopment Project Costs a set forth below; and  
 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the execution of this Agreement, the Developer shall continue 
with the Project as set forth herein.   
 
 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  4 | 16  
 

AGREEMENTS 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
acknowledged, agree as follows:  
 

A. PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS 
 

1. The Parties agree that the matters set forth in the recitals above are true and correct and 
form a part of this Agreement.  
 

2. Any terms which are not defined in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as they do 
in the Act, unless indicated to the contrary.  
 

3. The City is extending incentives for Developer’s Project in consideration of the Developer’s 
private investment Project as set forth herein.  
 

4. The Developer shall remain in compliance with all municipal ordinances relating to property 
development, property condition, zoning, subdivision, and building codes.  Failure to cure 
the violation of any such ordinance with thirty (30) days upon being provided written notice 
of the same by the City shall be cause for the City to declare the Developer in default and 
unilaterally terminate this Agreement, except where such failure is not reasonably susceptible 
to cure within such 30-day period, in which case the Developer shall have such additional 
time to cure as is reasonably necessary, provided that the Developer has commenced such 
cure within such 30-day period and continues to diligently prosecute the same to completion.  
 

5. Each of the Parties represents that it has taken all actions necessary to authorize its 
representatives to execute this Agreement.  

 
B. DEFINITIONS 

 
“TIF Eligible Project Costs” shall mean those costs which are eligible for reimbursement under 
the TIF Act and are further described in Exhibit 2 attached hereto.  
 

C. ADOPTION OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
 
The City has created a Tax Increment Financing District, currently known as “Peru Downtown 
TIF District” which includes the Developer’s Property.  
 

D. INCENTIVES  
 
In consideration for the Developer purchasing the Property and substantially completing the Project 
as set forth herein, the City agrees to extend to the Developer the following incentives to assist the 
Developer’s Project: 
  

1. Pay-As-You-Go Reimbursement.    Fifty Percent (50%) of the annual “net” incremental 
increases in real estate taxes generated over the base year by the Developer’s Project during 
the remaining life of the TIF District, Tax Year 2042 payable 2043, or until such time as 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  5 | 16  
 

Developer has no additional TIF Eligible Costs, whichever occurs first, including Eligible 
Project Costs for any future additions or improvements to the building not specified in 
Exhibit 2, shall be paid annually to Developer commencing upon approval of this 
Agreement.  These funds are to be allocated to and when collected shall be paid to the City 
Treasurer for deposit in a separate account within the Special Tax Allocation Fund for the 
Peru Downtown TIF District designated as the “X-ercise Science Special Account” (the 
“Special Account”).  The remaining fifty percent (50%) of the net incremental increases in 
real estate taxes generated over the base year amount will be used for TIF Eligible Costs at 
the discretion of the City, or for any other TIF Eligible expenditure allowed under the law.    
 
“Net Increment” is defined as increases in annual real estate tax increment derived from 
the Developer’s Project as previously described after payment for a proportionate amount of 
administrative fees and costs and payments pursuant to Intergovernmental Agreements that 
are approved by the City.  
 

2. Limitation of Incentives to Developer.   If, during the Term of this Agreement, the 
Developer is in default of this Agreement and remains in default after the applicable notice 
and cure periods set forth in Section F. and G. below, the Developer shall receive no further 
reimbursements hereunder, and any reimbursements previously received by the Developer 
shall be returned by it to the City within thirty (30) days.  

 
E. PAYMENT OF ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS 

 
1. A request for payment to the Developer for Eligible Project Costs as set forth by the Act 

shall be made by a Requisition for Payment of Private Development Redevelopment Costs 
(Exhibit 3).  Request for Verification of TIF Eligible Project Costs as submitted by the 
Developer to the City’s TIF Administrator, Jacob & Klein, Ltd. And The Economic 
Development Group, Ltd., (collectively the “Administrator”).  Payment is subject to the 
Administrator’s approval of the costs and to the availability of funds in the Special Account.  
 

2. The Requisition must be accompanied by verified bills and invoices, cancelled checks or 
statements of suppliers, contractors, or professionals together with Mechanic’s Lien Waivers 
as required by the City Administrator or Clerk.  
 

3. In order for the Developer to receive reimbursement of TIF Eligible Project Costs for costs 
it has incurred in any year as set forth in Paragraphs 1 and 2 above, the Developer must 
submit such proposed eligible costs to the City by March 1st of the following calendar year.  
If there are no accumulated outstanding costs previously submitted and approved by the 
City and if the Developer does not submit such proposed eligible costs by this deadline, the 
Developer will forfeit reimbursement of such costs from the prior year’s real estate tax 
increment to be paid in the current year.  Any approved eligible costs submitted after this 
deadline will be eligible for reimbursement from the next year’s real estate increment 
receipts.  
 

4. Any real estate increment not required to be paid to the Developer under the terms of 
Paragraph 3 above shall be available to the City for any purpose set forth in the TIF Plan 
and allowed by the Act.  



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  6 | 16  
 

 
5. The Developer shall use such sums as reimbursement for TIF Eligible Project Costs only to 

the extent permitted by law and the Act and may allocate such funds for any purpose for the 
terms of this Agreement or the term of the TIF District whichever is longer.  
 

6. All TIF Eligible Project Costs approved shall then be paid by the City from the Special 
Account to the Developer, or to others as directed by the Developer, pursuant to the 
Redevelopment Plan and as allowed by Illinois law.  The City shall pay such approved 
Eligible Costs annually, provided the Developer has satisfied the terms of this Agreement 
and costs which exceed the amount available to pay the Developer shall carry forward, until 
paid, without further action of the Developer.  Payment shall be made within forty-five (45) 
days after approval subject to the terms of this Agreement and after receipt of the increment 
generated by the Developer’s Redevelopment Project from the County.  
 

7. The Parties acknowledge that the determination of TIF Eligible Project Costs and, therefore, 
qualification for reimbursement hereunder are subject to changes or interpretation made by 
amendments to the Act, administrative rules or judicial interpretation during the term of this 
Agreement.  The City has no obligation to the Developer to attempt to modify those 
decisions but will assist the Developer in every respect as to obtaining approval of Eligible 
Project Costs. 
 

8. The Developer may submit for prior approval by the City as Eligible Project Costs under the 
Act estimates of costs before they are incurred subject to later confirmation by actual bills.  
 

9. The Administrator shall approve or disapprove the Requisition by written receipt to the 
Developer within thirty (30) business days after receipt of the Requisition.  Approval of the 
Requisition will not be unreasonably withheld.  If the Requisition is disapproved by the 
Administrator (or subsequently by the Illinois Department of Revenue), the reasons for 
disallowance will be set forth in writing and the Developer may resubmit the Requisitions 
with such additional information as may be required and the same procedures set forth 
herein shall apply to such re-submittals.  

 
F. DEFUALT BY THE DEVELOPER 

 
1. Each of the following shall constitute an event of default by the Developer under this 

Agreement:  
 
a. The Developer fails to sure the violation of any municipal ordinance relating to property 

development, property conditions, zoning, subdivision or building codes within thirty 
(30) days upon being provided written notice of such violation by the City, except where 
such failure is not reasonably susceptible to sure within such 30-day period, in which 
case the Developer shall have such additional time to cure as is reasonably necessary, 
provided that the Developer has commenced such cure within such 30-day period and 
continues to diligently prosecute the same to completion.  
 

b. The Developer files for bankruptcy or otherwise becomes insolvent during the term of 
this Agreement.  



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  7 | 16  
 

 
c. Dissolution of the Developer’s corporation/company during the term of this 

Agreement.  
 
d. The Property becomes the subject of foreclosure proceedings during the term of this 

Agreement which proceedings are not vacated within thirty (30) days following the 
notice of filing of such foreclosure action.  

 
e. Except as required by law, commercial operations operating on the Property at the 

completion of the Project cease for a period of greater than ninety (90) days during the 
term of this Agreement.  

 
2. Effect of Default.    If, during the term of this Agreement, the Developer is in default of this 

Agreement and remains in default after the applicable notice and cure periods set forth 
herein, and remaining reimbursements owed the Developer hereunder shall cease and the 
Developer shall return any reimbursements already received by it to the City within thirty 
(30) days.  

 
G. DEFAULT; CURE; REMEDIES 

 
In the event of a default under this Redevelopment Agreement by any Party hereto (the “Defaulting 
Party”), which default is not cured within the cure period provided for below, then the other Party 
(the “Non-defaulting Party”) shall have an action for damages, or in the event damages would not 
fairly compensate the Non-defaulting Party’s for the Defaulting Party’s breach of this 
Redevelopment Agreement, the Non-defaulting Party shall have such other equity rights and 
remedies as are available to them at law or in equity.  Any damages payable by the City hereunder 
shall be limited to the real estate tax increment payable to the Developer under the terms of this 
Agreement.  
 
In the event a Defaulting Party shall fail to perform a monetary covenant which it is required to 
perform under this Redevelopment Agreement, it shall not be deemed to be in default under this 
Redevelopment Agreement unless it shall have failed to perform such monetary covenant within 
thirty (30) days of tis receipt of a notice from a Non-defaulting party specifying that it has failed to 
perform such monetary covenant.  In the vent a Defaulting Part fails to perform any nonmonetary 
covenant as and when it is required to under this Redevelopment Agreement, it shall not be deemed 
to be in default if it shall have cured such default within thirty (30) days of its receipt of a notice 
from a Non-defaulting Party specifying the nature of the default, provided, however, with respect to 
those nonmonetary defaults which are not capable of being cured within such thirty (30) day period, 
it shall not be deemed to be in default if it commences curing within such thirty (30) day period, and 
thereafter diligently and continuously prosecutes the cure of such default until the same has been 
cured.  
 

H. LIMITED OBLIGATION 
  
The City’s obligation hereunder to pay the Developer for Redevelopment Project Costs is a limited 
obligation to be paid solely from the incremental property tax revenue generated by the Project.  
Said obligation does not now and shall never constitute an indebtedness of the City within the 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  8 | 16  
 

meaning of any State of Illinois constitutional or statutory provision and shall not constitute or give 
rise to a pecuniary liability of the City or a charge or lien against any City fund or require the City to 
utilize its taxing authority to fulfill the terms of this Agreement. 
 

I. WAIVER  
 
Any Party to this Agreement may elect to waive any remedy it may enjoy hereunder, provided that 
no such waiver shall be deemed to exist unless the Party waiving such right of remedy does so in 
writing.  No such waiver shall obligate such Party to waive any right of remedy hereunder, or shall 
be deemed to constitute a waiver of other rights and remedies provided said Party pursuant to this 
Agreement.  
 

J. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 
Party or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of said section, 
subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the application of same to Parties or 
circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected 
thereby. 
 

K. VERIFICATION OF REAL ESTATE TAX INCREMENT  
 

1. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer or its successors in interest to provide to 
the City, as requested in writing, copies of all annual PAID real estate tax bills for the 
Property.  
 

2. The failure of Developer to provide any additional information required herein after written 
notice from the City, including verification of TIF Eligible Project Costs, and the continued 
failure to provide such information within thirty (30) days after such notice shall be 
considered a material breach of this Agreement and shall be cause for the City to deny 
payments hereunder to the Developer, which payments are conditioned upon receipt of the 
foregoing information.  

 
L. REIMBURSEMENT OF THE DEVELOPER’S SHARE OF 

TAX OBJECTION REFUNDS 
 
If a refund of incremental property tax revenue (including any accrued statutory interest thereon) is 
potentially due from the City’s TIF Fund as the result of any tax objection, assessment challenge or 
formal appeal to the Illinois Property Tax Appeal Board (PTAB), issuance of a certificate of error or 
other such action, including any appeals therefrom concerning the potential reduction of assessed 
value of the Property, the City may at its sole discretion withhold the Developer’s share of any such 
possible refund (including any accrued statutory interest thereon) from future reimbursements 
calculated to be paid to the Developer under this Agreement.  Furthermore, the Developer is hereby 
obligated to provide written notice to the City within five (5) days of filing any such objection, 
assessment challenge or formal appeal to the PTAB or other such action, including any appeals 
therefrom, that could potentially reduce the assessed value of the Property.  Failure to provide such 
notice shall be considered a breach of this Agreement and shall be cause for the City to deny 
payments hereunder to the Developer.  



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  9 | 16  
 

 
Any funds withheld by the City under this Section L shall be deposited by it into a special interest 
bearing bank account.  Upon final determination of the assessed value of the Property, the City shall 
pay to the Developer the principal amount due under this Agreement as recalculated.  The City shall 
be entitled to retain any interest earned on the account as partial payment for the administration of 
the account due to the delay of the determination of the final evaluation and recalculation of the 
benefits due the Developer under this Agreement.  
 
If it appears to the City that it will be unable to recover the Developer’s share of any such refund 
(including any accrued statutory interest thereon) from the remaining future reimbursements due the 
Developer under the Agreement, the Developer shall reimburse the City for the Developer’s 
remaining unpaid share of such refund within thirty (30) days upon receiving written demand of the 
same from the City.  
 
Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the obligations contained in 
this Section L shall remain in effect for the remaining life of the TIF District, (identified by the City 
as tax year 2030 payable 2031).  Furthermore, the obligations set forth in this Section L shall survive 
the expiration of the TIF District if a tax objection or other such action taken by the Developer is 
pending prior to the expiration of the TIF District and shall continue until final disposition of such 
action. 
 

M. NOTICES 
 
All notices, demand, request, consents, approvals or other instruments required or permitted by this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be executed by the Party or an officer, agent or attorney of 
the Party, and shall be deemed to have been effective as of the date of actual delivery, if delivered 
personally, or as of the third (3rd) day from and including the date of posting, if mailed by registered 
or certified mail, returned receipt requested, with postage prepaid addressed as follows:  
 
TO CITY:  
City Clerk 
City of Peru 
1901 – 4th Street 
Peru, Illinois 61354 
Telephone: (815) 223-0061 
Fax:  (815) 223-9489 
 

TO DEVELOPER: 
X-ercise Science Inc. 
Attn:  John P. Ramirez 
830 Harrison Street 
Peru, Illinois 61354   
Telephone:  (815) 343-0094 
 
 

With copy to: 
Jacob & Klein, Ltd. And  
Economic Development Group, Ltd. 
1701 Clearwater Avenue 
Bloomington, IL 61704 
Telephone:  (309) 664-7777 
 

N. NO JOINT VENTURE, AGENCY, OR PARTNERSHIP CREATED 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  10 | 16  
 

Neither anything in this Agreement nor any acts of the Parties to this Agreement shall be construed 
by the Parties or any third person to create the relationship of a partnership, agency, or joint venture 
between or among such Parties.  

O. INDEMNIFICATION OF CITY/WORK  
 
Developer acknowledges that the Project is subject to the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act and shall 
comply with all provisions of the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 et. seq. in the 
demolition of existing structures and in the construction of any public improvements and permanent 
real estate improvements on the Development Property.  Developer shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the City, and all City elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, engineers, consultants and attorneys (collectively, the Indemnified Parties), from any 
and all claims that may be asserted against the Indemnified Parties or one or more of them, in 
connection with the applicability, determination, and/or payments made under the Illinois Prevailing 
Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et.seq.), the Illinois Procurement Code, and/or any similar State or 
Federal law or regulation.  In addition, Developer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City 
for any claim asserted against the City arising from Developer’s Project and/or this Agreement or 
any challenge to the eligibility of project costs reimbursed to Developer hereunder.  
 

P. ASSIGNMENT  
 
The rights and obligations of the Developer under this Agreement shall be assignable by the 
Developer provided written notice is provided to the City and the City’s consent is obtained prior to 
such assignment.  The City’s consent shall not be unreasonably withheld provided that the nature of 
the Project is not substantially changed, and that the assignee is financially capable of fulfilling the 
obligation of the assignor.  Any such assignment shall be subject to all the terms and conditions 
contained in this Agreement.  Further, no such assignment shall be deemed to release the assignor of 
its obligations to the City under this Agreement unless the consent of the City to the release of the 
assignor’s obligations is first obtained. 
 

Q. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST / TIF SUCCESSION  
 
Subject to the provisions of Section P, above, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, if any.  
 

R. CITY PUBLIC PROJECTS 
 
The City intends to use part or all of its share of the Project’s real estate increment for other public 
projects within the TIF District or within contiguous TIF Districts as allowed by law.  The City shall 
be eligible for reimbursement of the cost of doing so, as well as other eligible costs incurred by the 
City in the TIF District.  
 

S. LIMITED LIABILITY OF CITY TO OTHER FOR  
DEVELOPER’S EXPENSES 

 
There shall be no obligation by the City to make any payments to any person other than the 
Developer (unless otherwise directed by the Developer pursuant to an assignment of the rights 
thereto made by the Developer and delivered to the City), nor shall the City be obligated to make 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  11 | 16  
 

direct payments to any other contractor, subcontractor, mechanic or materialman provided services 
or materials to the Developer for the Developer’s Project. 
 
 

T. PREPAYMENTS  
 
Should the annual incremental tax revenue generated by the Project be sufficient to pay all 
Redevelopment Project Costs prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement, the City may, in 
its sole discretion, elect to pay all then remaining payments in a single lump sum payment.  
 

U. WARRANTY OF SIGNATORIES  
 
The signatories of Developer warrant full authority to both execute this Agreement and to bind the 
entity in which they are signing on behalf of.  
 

V. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and exhibits attached hereto supersede all 
prior oral and written understandings and constitute the entire agreement between the City and the 
Developer with respect to the subject matter hereof.  Upon approval of this Agreement, the Parties 
agree that the prior Agreement between the Parties regarding this Property is hereby revoked.  
 

W. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement shall expire upon the first to occur of:  (1) the currently scheduled expiration date 
of the TIF District, tax year 2042 payable in 2043; (2) full reimbursement of all of Developer’s TIF 
Eligible Costs; (3) upon default by Developer under this Agreement after the applicable notice and 
cure periods provided herein; (4) upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition by Developer; or (5) filing 
of a foreclosure proceeding against the Property subject to this Agreement.  
 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Left Blank.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  12 | 16  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized officers on the above date at Utica, Illinois.  
 
CITY: 
 
City of Peru, Illinois, an Illinois Home-Rule 
Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:        
      Mayor, City of Peru 
 
Attest:  
 
By:        
      City Clerk, City Peru 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OWNER / DEVELOPER: 
 
X-ercise Science, Inc, an Illinois 
Corporation 
 
By:        
       John P. Ramirez, President 
 
Attest:          
            Its Secretary 
  
John P. Ramirez 
 
      
Individually 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  13 | 16  
 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

PERMANENT INDEX NUMBER  
 

Project by:  John P. Ramirez and X-ercise Science Inc. 
Peru Downtown TIF District 

City of Peru, LaSalle County, Illinois  
 
 

 
John P. Ramirez and X-ercise Science Inc. Parcel:  
 
Parcel No.:  17-18-403-002 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  14 | 16  
 

 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT 2 

 
SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED TIF ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS  

 
Project by:  John P. Ramirez and X-ercise Science Inc. 

Peru Downtown TIF District 
City of Peru, LaSalle County, Illinois  

 
Project Description:  The Developer has acquired the Property and is renovating the existing 
building located on said Property for the purpose of operating a fitness center (the “Project”).  
 
Property Description:  (PIN See Attached Exhibit 1) located at 830 Harrison Street, Peru, Illinois.    
 
Estimated TIF Eligible Project Costs:  
 
Land Acquisition  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $260,000.00 
 
Professional Fees (Architectural, Engineering, Legal) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $  15,000.00 
 
Rehabilitation/Renovation (existing buildings)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $  16,600.00 
 
Interest Costs Related to Project (limited to 30%)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $  45,350.00 
 
Heating & Cooling   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $  40,000.00 
 
Asbestos Removal   . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $  16,000.00   
 
 
Total Estimated TIF Eligible Project Costs:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $392,950.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  15 | 16  
 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 3 
 

CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS  
PERU DOWNTOWN TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

 
PRIVATE PROJECT 

REQUEST FOR VERIFICATION OF TIF ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS 
by 

JOHN P. RAMIREZ and X-ERCISE SCIENCE INC. 
 

Date      
 
Attention:  City TIF Administrator, City of Peru, Illinois 
 
Re: TIF Redevelopment Agreement, dated ________________, 20__ 
 by and between the City of Peru and  

John P. Ramirez and X-ercise Science Inc. (collectively the “Developer”) 
 
 The City of Peru is hereby requested to disburse funds from the Special Tax Allocation Fund 
pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement described above in the following amount(s), to the Developer and 
for the purpose(s) set forth in this Request for Reimbursement.  The terms use in this Request for 
Reimbursement shall have the meanings given to those terms in the Redevelopment Agreement. 
 
1. REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT NO. _______________ 

 
2. PAYMENT DUE TO: X-ercise Science Inc.   

 
3. AMOUNTS REQUESTED TO BE DISBURSED:  

 
Description of TIF Eligible Project Costs Amount 

  
  
  
  
  
  

Total:   
  
 
4. The amount requested to be disbursed pursuant to this Request for Reimbursement will be used to 

reimburse the Developer for Redevelopment Project Costs for the Project detailed in Exhibit 1 of the 
Redevelopment Agreement.  
 

5. The undersigned certifies and swears under oath that the following statements are true and correct:  
 



City of Peru Downtown TIF District / X-ercise Science Inc. / RDA  16 | 16  
 

(i) The amounts included in (3) above were made, incurred or financed and were necessary for the 
Project and were made or incurred in accordance with the construction contracts, plans and 
specifications heretofore in effect; and  
 

(ii) The amounts paid or to be paid, as set forth in this Request for Reimbursement, represent a part 
of the funds due and payable for TIF Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs; and  

 
(iii) The expenditures for which amounts are requested represent proper Redevelopment Project 

Costs as identified in the “Limitation of Incentives to Developer” described in Section D of the 
Redevelopment Agreement; have not been included in any previous Request for Reimbursement; 
have been properly recorded on the Developer’s books; are set forth with invoices attached for 
all sums for which reimbursement is requested; and proof of payment of the invoices is attached; 
and  

 
(iv) The amounts requested are not greater than those necessary to meet obligations due and payable 

or to reimburse the Developer for its funds actually advanced for Redevelopment Project Costs; 
and  

 
(v) The Developer is not in default under the Redevelopment Agreement and nothing has occurred 

to the knowledge of the Developer that would prevent the performance of its obligations under 
the Redevelopment Agreement.  

 
Any violation of this oath shall constitute a default of the Redevelopment Agreement and shall be cause 
for the City to unilaterally terminate the Redevelopment Agreement.  
 

6. Attached to this Request for Reimbursement is Exhibit 1 of the Redevelopment Agreement, together 
with copies of invoices, proof of payment of the invoices, and Mechanic’s Lien Waivers relating to all 
items for which reimbursement is begin requested.  
 

 
BY:           (Developer) 
 
TITLE:         
 
APPROVED BY CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
BY:         
 
TITLE:      DATE:       
 
REVIEWED BY JACOB & KLEIN, LTD. & THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LTD.  
 
BY:         
 
TITLE:      DATE:      



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PERU 
COUNTY OF LA SALLE 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING  
THE EXECUTION OF A TIF DISTRICT REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 
by and between 

  
THE CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
and 

 
JOHN P. RAMIREZ and X-ERCISE SCIENCE, INC., 

an Illinois Corporation 
 
 
 

  PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PERU, 
LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS ON THE 26th DAY OF MAY, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

 
CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS  

 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING  

THE EXECUTION OF A TIF DISTRICT REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
by and between  

THE CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
and 

JOHN P. RAMIREZ and X-ERCISE SCIENCE, INC., 
an Illinois Corporation 

 
 

PREAMBLE  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Peru, LaSalle County, Illinois (“City”), established a Tax 
Increment Financing District known as the Peru Downtown TIF District (the “TIF 
District”) pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (the “Act”), 65 
ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. on January 7, 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the TIF Redevelopment Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit A is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Peru.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Peru is a Home-Rule Municipality and this Agreement is 
approved pursuant to that authority.  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF PERU, AN ILLINOIS HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY, THAT:  
 
SECTION ONE: The TIF Redevelopment Agreement hereto attached as Exhibit A 
by and between the City of Peru, LaSalle County, Illinois (the “City”) and John R. 
Ramirez and X-ercise Science, Inc., an Illinois Corporation (the “Developer”) is hereby 
approved.  

 
SECTION TWO: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to enter into and 
execute on behalf of the City said Redevelopment Agreement and the City Clerk of the 
City of Peru is hereby authorized and directed to attest such execution.  

 
SECTION THREE: The Redevelopment Agreement shall be effective the date of its 
approval and signature by the last required signatory. 

 
SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval as required by law.  

 
  



PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Peru on this 26th day of May, 2020.  
 

  
CORPORATE AUTHORITIES AYE VOTE NAY VOTE ABSTAIN / ABSENT 
Tony Ferrari    
Jeff Ballard    
Mike Radtke    
Tom Payton    
Dave Waldorf    
Mike Sapienza    
Aaron Buffo    
Jim Lukosus    

TOTAL VOTES:    
 
 
APPROVE:              Date:  05 / 26 / 2020 

Scott Harl, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:            Date:  05 / 26 / 2020 

David R. Bartley, Jr., City Clerk 
 
 
 
(CORPORATE SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 Exhibit A –  TIF Redevelopment Agreement by and between the City of Peru  
 and John P. Ramirez and X-ercise Science, Inc.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



EXHBIT A 
 
 

  PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
by and between  

THE CITY OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
and 

JOHN P. RAMIREZ and X-ERCISE SCIENCE, INC., 
an Illinois Corporation 

 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE NO. ___________

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING
THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF PERU, LA SALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

&

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513

PERU DOWNTOWN TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT

ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PERU,
LA SALLE COUNTY,  ILLINOIS, ON THE 26th DAY OF MAY, 2020.



CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS:  ORDINANCE NO._____________

PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN:

CITY OF PERU 
AND 

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513
______________________________________________________________

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF PERU, A HOME-RULE
MUNICIPALITY, THAT:  

SECTION ONE:  The Intergovernmental Agreement with Illinois Valley Community College
District No. 513 (Exhibit A), attached hereto is hereby approved. 

SECTION TWO:  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to enter into and execute on
behalf of the City said Intergovernmental Agreement and the City Clerk of the City of Peru is hereby
authorized and directed to attest such execution.

SECTION THREE:  The Intergovernmental Agreement shall be effective the date of its approval
by the City. 

SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Home-Rule Authority of the City. 

SECTION FIVE:   This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval as required by law.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



PRESENTED, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the
City Council of the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ______ voting aye,
____ voting nay, ______ absent, and Mayor Harl not voting, which meeting was held on the 26th

day of May, A.D., 2020. 

ALDERMEN: AYE NAY ABSENT

Tony Ferrari

Jeff Ballard

Dave Waldorf

Mike Sapienza

Aaron Buffo

Mike Radtke

Tom Payton

Jim Lukosus

Mayor, Scott Harl

TOTAL VOTES:

APPROVED:    ________________________________,   Date:  05/26/2020
   Scott Harl, Mayor

ATTEST:      ________________________________,   Date:  05/26/2020
                         Davi R. Bartley, Jr., City Clerk



EXHIBIT A

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF PERU
AND

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513 

PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT



CITY OF PERU DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS

and
ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513

This Intergovernmental Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Peru, an
Illinois Home-Rule Municipal Corporation, and Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513,
pursuant to the 1970 Illinois Constitution and Illinois Compiled Statutes.

In consideration of their mutual promises, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The City of Peru (“City”) is an Illinois Home-Rule Municipal Corporation organized under
the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513, (“Community College District”), is
an Illinois Community College District organized under the Statutes of the State of Illinois.

3. The City has the authority under the Expenses for Economic Development Act, 65 ILCS
5/8-1-2.5, to appropriate and expend funds for economic development purposes, including,
without limitation, the making of grants to any other governmental entity that is deemed
necessary or desirable for the promotion of economic development within the municipality. 

4. The 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article VII, Section 10, and the Illinois Compiled  Statutes
2012, Ch. 5 Section 220/1 et seq. provide legal authority for intergovernmental privileges
and authority to be enjoyed jointly by taxing districts and municipalities as well as other
public bodies politic. 

5. The Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (“TIF Act”), Illinois Compiled  Statutes
2012, as amended, Ch. 65 Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. authorizes a municipality to enter into
all contracts necessary or incidental to the implementation and furtherance of its
redevelopment plan and project.

6. The City is proposing to adopt a Redevelopment Plan and Projects and designate a
Redevelopment Area pursuant to the TIF Act for the Peru Downtown TIF District (“TIF
District”) which is an area located within the Community College District and which will
impact the growth of the Community College District’s taxing base. 

7. The City has determined that it wishes to reduce some of the negative impact on the real
estate tax base of the Community College District caused by the creation of the TIF District. 

8. The Parties declare that this Agreement is adopted pursuant to the 1970 Illinois
Constitution, Article VII, Section 10 and Chapter 65 Section 5/11-74.4-4(b) of the TIF Act
and any other applicable statutes.

1



NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to implement these policies as follows:

I.  REIMBURSEMENT

A. REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATION

During the term of this Agreement, the City agrees to reimburse the Community College District
from the real estate tax increment created by any development or increase in equalized assessed
valuation within the TIF District, all of the Community College District’s operating tax rate, as
shown below, subject to a maximum operating tax rate of 0.50000%.  The reimbursed sum is to be
used for expenditures of capital costs, as set forth in the TIF Act. 

As a result of the information provided annually by the LaSalle County Clerk, the Parties will
compute the payment required as set forth below.  In the event that such office fails to provide the
information requested, the Parties will use their own best efforts to obtain the necessary
information. 

An example of this computation is as follows: 

a) Community College District’s tax rate = 0.36854 %

b) The County Clerk will certify that the increase in EAV in the TIF District
over the base year and within the Community College District’s boundaries:

For example: Real Estate Tax Increment = $100,000

c) Resulting payment:  Item a) x  Item b) = $368.54

B. TAX INCREMENT

The Parties agree that the LaSalle County Clerk will provide to the Parties the actual annual gross
real estate tax increment generated within the TIF District and report such increment to the Parties.

C. IMPACT FEE

The City will pay the sum above described in Paragraph A to the Community College District from
the Special Tax Allocation Fund as an impact fee to be used for capital costs, pursuant to current
Section 4-3(q)(7) and (10) of the TIF Act, and the Community College District shall provide the City
with a list of the expenditures annually. 

The payments made as an impact fee under this paragraph may be used for the following purposes: 

1. Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction or repair or remodeling of existing public or
private buildings, fixtures, and leasehold improvements; and the costs of replacing an
existing public building if pursuant to the implementation of a redevelopment
project the existing public building is to be the demolished to use the site for private
investment or devoted to a different use requiring private investment, pursuant to
current Section 4-3(q)(3) and (10) of the TIF Act. 

2



2. Costs of construction of public works or improvements, pursuant to current Section
4-3(q)(4) of the TIF Act. 

For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Capital” shall include all real property, and all personal
property having a value in excess of $500 and, having a useful life of at least six (6) months and
otherwise meeting the definition of “Capital” as set forth by the applicable governing body. 
Examples of Capital Costs are, but not limited to: 

1. Acquisition of land;
2. Improvement to any existing government building;
3. Development of classrooms, parking lots, sidewalks, traffic signals, internal

roadways, connections with water, sewer and electrical lines, playgrounds, recreation
grounds and athletic fields;

4. Remodeling or renovation of existing facilities of the Community College District;
5. Maintenance, equipment, office equipment, Community College District vehicles; or 
8. Any other piece of capital equipment deemed necessary by the Community College

District. 

It is understood by the parties that the Community College District, upon receiving the funds as
impact fee distributions, may use those funds for any purpose as permitted by law.  The Community
College District agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend, at its sole cost, the City from any
and all challenges that may be brought regarding use of such distributions.  The City agrees that it
will not challenge the purposes for which said distributed funds are used by the Community College
District.  All distributions shall be treated as project costs of the TIF District. 

D. REIMBURSEMENT TIMING

The City shall pay the sum determined above to the Community College District within sixty (60)
days of the City’s receipt of the real estate tax increment generated as a preference and in the same
proportions as actually received by the City provided that the Community College District has filed
periodically with the City a list of eligible project costs equal to or exceeding the calculated sum to be
paid to the Community College District under the terms of this Agreement.

II.   GENERAL

A. Binding Effect:

This Agreement shall be binding on the Parties and their respective successors, including
successors in office.  Should the Community College District merge or otherwise experience a
jurisdictional change, the Agreement shall apply to the successor Community College District.

B. Governing Law:

This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Illinois.

3



C. Term:

The TIF District shall terminate upon completion of all redevelopment projects or on
December 31 of the twenty-third (23rd) year following the creation of the TIF District, or upon
expiration of any legislative extension of the TIF, whichever occurs first.  Whether the TIF District
exists for the entire term, or terminates earlier, the City will pay in the following year thereafter, the
sums due to the Community College District for the prior year or years.

D. Amendments, Waivers, Modifications:

No amendment, waiver or modification of any term or condition of this Agreement shall be
binding or effective for any purpose unless expressed in writing and adopted by each of the Parties
as required by law.

E. Waiver of All Rights to Contest TIF District:

The Community College District by its execution and approval of this Agreement hereby
waives forever any and all right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify or contest in any manner
the establishment or administration of the Peru Downtown TIF District including the
Redevelopment Plan, Projects and Area.  Nothing contained herein is to be construed to give the
Community College District any right to participate in the administration of the TIF District or Plan
or Project.  Further, the Community College District or its agents, employees, or officers shall not
aid or assist in any manner any other party or entity seeking to challenge the TIF District.

F. Enlargement of the TIF District:

The City agrees that it will notify the Community College District of any proposed
enlargement of the TIF District at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of ordinances changing
the TIF District boundaries.

G. Amending the TIF District:

The City will not otherwise amend the TIF Plan except after providing prior written notice
to the Community College District and holding such public hearings as required by statute.

H. Real Estate Tax Increment Information:

1. The Administrators of the TIF Plan and City agree to provide the Community
College District with information developed to establish the initial equalized assessed
valuation of the TIF District and the calculations for successive years' computation
of the real estate tax increment for the TIF District.  

2. The City agrees that its Administrators shall provide the Community College District
with a copy of the TIF Annual Report when it is presented to the City Board of
Trustees.  Such Report shall set forth: (a) the balance in the Special Tax Allocation
Fund (“Fund”) at the beginning of the year; (b) all amounts deposited in the Fund by
source; (c) all expenditures from the Fund by categories; and (d) the balance in the
Fund at the end of the year by source. 

4



I. Complete Agreement:

This Agreement expresses the complete and final understanding of the Parties with respect
to the subject matter.  

J. Severability: 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any
other provision hereof.

K. Authority to Execute:

The undersigned represent that they have the authority of their respective governing
authorities to execute this Agreement.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.]

5



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the
_______ day of ___________________, 2018.

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY CITY OF PERU, an Illinois Home-Rule
COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513  Municipal Corporation

By: __________________________ By: _______________________________
Board President Mayor, Scott Harl

       

Attest: ________________________ Attest: ____________________________
Board Secretary             City Clerk, Dave Bartley

  

6











1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 21, 2020 

    

Mayor Scott J. Harl,  

Peru City Clerk, and 

Aldermen of the City of Peru 

 

RE: Petition of Illinois Kindness Three LLC 

 Property located on the southeast corner of Donlar Avenue and Unytite Drive,  

 Peru, IL 

 

 

Gentlemen: 

 

Pursuant to legal notice published in the News Tribune in the manner provided by law, the 

Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru convened for a public hearing on Wednesday, May 20, 

2020, at 5:00 p.m. in the City Municipal Building, 1901 Fourth Street, Peru, IL, to consider the Petition of 

Illinois Kindness Three LLC (hereinafter “Petitioner”) concerning property generally located on the 

southeast corner of Donlar Avenue and Unytite Drive, Peru, IL, legally described as follows:  

 

Lot A in the Subdivision of Lots 1 and 2 in May Road Business Park – 1, being a 

Subdivision of part of the West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 32, Township 34 

North, Range 1 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the Plat of said 

Subdivision of Lots 1 and 2 recorded June 12, 2008 as document 2008-13406; SITUATED 

IN LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS   

 

PIN: 11-32-302-006 (hereinafter “Property”). 

 

            With consent of the Property owner, Petitioner requests a text amendment to Section 12.03 of the 

Zoning Ordinance to add a special use for Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organizations and for Adult-Use 

Cannabis Transporting Organizations in a M-2 Manufacturing District.  Petitioner further requests a text 

amendment to Section 4.19(k) of the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the co-location of an Adult-Use 

Cannabis Craft Grower, Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization and an Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting 

Organization. Petitioner prays for a special use to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower, Adult-Use 

Cannabis Infuser Organization, and an Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization on the Property.    

 

Planning/Zoning Commission Members Miller, Grabowski, Atkinson, Lucas, Kalsto, Brady, and 

Moreno were present at the hearing. No members were absent. Due to COVID-19, this meeting was also 

streamed live on the internet.  



2 
 

 

No one appeared on behalf of the Petitioner. City Attorney Scott Schweickert stated that he had 

reviewed Petitioner’s “Statement of Case” submitted to the City and largely agreed with the text amendment 

language proposed by Petitioner. The only significant changes suggested by Attorney Schweickert 

concerned the floor space requirements in Sections 4.19(f)(4), (g)(4), (h)(4), and (i)(4); stating that, should 

the City approve the text amendment allowing for co-location of Adult-Use Cannabis Establishments, those 

sections should also be amended to add the language “unless authorized by Section 4.19(k).”  

 

Petitioner’s Statement of Case, Affidavit of Compliance with Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and 

Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis Facility Components), and Powerpoint presentation slides were 

received into the record and are attached hereto. Attorney Schweickert stated he was satisfied Petitioner’s 

Affidavit met the requirements of the Adult-Use Cannabis Facility Components in Section 4.19(c) of the 

Zoning Ordinance.  

 

There were no objectors at the hearing or online.  

 

The Planning/Zoning Commission found that the requested special use will not alter the essential 

character of the locality; will not be detrimental or injurious to other properties in the area; will not impair 

an adequate supply of light or air to adjacent properties, or increase the danger of fire, or endanger the 

public safety, or diminish or impair property values and will not increase street congestion and, therefore, 

recommends to the City Council that the special use be granted. 

 

Chairman Miller moved, and Member Moreno seconded, to favorably recommend to the City 

Council a text amendment to Section 4.19(k) of the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the co-location of any 

combination of Adult-Use Cannabis Establishments as proposed by Petitioner. The motion passed: 6 aye, 

Member Kalsto voting nay, and 0 Members absent.     

 

Chairman Miller moved, and Member Grabowski seconded, to favorably recommend to the City 

Council a text amendment to Section 12.03(d) of the Zoning Ordinance to add Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser 

Organizations and Adult Use Cannabis Transporting Organizations as a special use in a M-2 Manufacturing 

zoning district as proposed by Petitioner. The motion passed: 6 aye, Member Kalsto voting nay, and 0 

Members absent.   

 

In response to Member Lucas, City Engineer Carls stated that Petitioner will still be required to go 

through the City’s standard building and site permitting process and receive City approval before 

construction on the Property.  

 

Member Lucas moved, and Member Moreno seconded, to favorably recommend to the City 

Council that they approve Petitioner’s requested special use to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft 

Grower, Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization, and an Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization 

co-located on the Property.  The motion passed:  6 aye, Member Kalsto voting nay, and 0 Members absent.     

   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CARY MILLER, Chairman of the 

Planning/Zoning Commission  
 



52334466;2 

ILLINOIS KINDNESS THREE LLC 
STATEMENT OF CASE 

FOR 
TEXT AMENDMENTS AND SPECIAL USES 

THE APPLICANT 
Illinois Kindness Three LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (the "Applicant") is the 
applicant for this text amendment and special use application.  The Applicant holds a contractual 
interest which may become a freehold interest in the Property, as that term is defined below, an 
option to purchase the Property, and/or an exclusive possessory interest which is specifically 
enforceable on the Property. 

THE PROPERTY AND RELIEF SOUGHT 
The subject site (the "Property") is Lot "A" May Road Business Center, commonly known as East 
1st Road and Unytite Drive, Peru, Illinois, and located at the southeast corner of the East 1st

Road/Unytite Drive intersection.  The Property currently consists of approximately 229,561 square 
feet of agricultural land and is zoned M-2 Heavy Manufacturing District. 
The Applicant is seeking the following relief: 

(a) Text amendment amending Article IV – General Provisions, Section 4.19, Adult-
Use Cannabis, of The City of Peru Zoning Ordinance by adding the underlined 
language and deleting the stricken language, as follows: 

*** 
(k) Co-Location of Cannabis Business Establishments.  The City may 
approve the co-location of any Adult-Use Cannabis Establishment in any 
combination, Dispensing Organization with an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft 
Grower Center or an Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization, or both, 
subject to the provisions of the Act and the City's Special Use criteria.  In a 
co-location, the floor space requirements of Sections 4.19(f)(4), and 
4.19(g)(4), 4.19(h)(4) and 4.19(i)(4) shall not apply, but the co-located 
establishments shall be the sole use of the tenant space. 

(b) Text amendment amending Article XII – Manufacturing Districts, Section 12.03, 
M-2, Manufacturing District, of The City of Peru Zoning Ordinance by adding the 
underlined language, as follows: 

*** 
(d) Special Uses 
*** 
(13) Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization.  Subject to the Adult-Use 
Cannabis provisions set forth in Section 4.19 of this Ordinance. 
(14) Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization.  Subject to the 
Adult-Use Cannabis provisions set forth in Section 4.19 of this Ordinance. 



52334466;2 

(c) Three (3) special use permits for an (i) adult-use cannabis craft grower, (ii) adult-
use cannabis infuser organization, and (iii) adult-use cannabis transporting 
organization or transporter, to operate and co-locate at the Property. 

AUTHORITY 
The Planning Commission and the City Council have the authority to consider this application, 
make recommendations and take final action on this application pursuant to Sections 4.19, 15.10, 
15.11 and 15.12 of The City of Peru Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance"). 

ADULT-USE CANNABIS FACILITY COMPONENTS 
The Applicant meets all of the components for granting the relief sought as follows: 

1. Impact of the proposed facility on existing or planned uses located within the vicinity of 
the subject property. 

The proposed facility will not affect existing or planned uses located within the vicinity of 
the Property because the Property abuts the commercial intersection of East 1st

Road/Unytite Drive and is surrounded by commercial uses.  Surrounding land uses 
primarily include agriculture, a tractor-trailer freight depot, and single and multi-story 
industrial/manufacturing facilities.  The zoning classifications for the surrounding 
properties are B-4 Highway Business, M-1 Light Manufacturing, M-2 Heavy 
Manufacturing Districts. 

The proposed facility will not only serve a commercial use but will be wholly contained in 
an enclosed building to the benefit of security and conformity with the character of the 
surrounding area.  In addition, the proposed use will not burden the immediate area with 
an excessive number of similar uses because adult-use cannabis establishments are a new 
land use for the City of Peru and the State of Illinois. 

2. Proposed structure in which the facility will be located, including co-tenancy (if in a multi-
tenant building), total square footage, security installations/security plan and building 
code compliance. 

The proposed facility is a single-tenant structure that will be one-story of approximately 
20-feet in height and contain a total of approximately 27,707 square feet.  The approximate 
gross floor area by use is as follows:  (a) 25,660 square feet of manufacturing, (b) 1,079 
square feet of storage, and (c) 968 square feet of office.  The proposed security 
installation/security plan will comply with the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act.  The 
proposed structure will comply with all applicable building codes. 

3. Hours of operation and anticipated number of customers/employees. 

The proposed facility will operate 24 hours per day, 7 days per week.  The anticipated 
number of customers will be zero and employees will be between 20-50, but no more than 
15 employees are anticipated on site at any one time. 



52334466;2 

4. Anticipated parking demand based on the Zoning Ordinance and available private parking 
supply. 

Pursuant to Sections 4.19(d)(4), (g)(5), (i)(5), 7.03(b)(9) and 7.05(c)(4) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the proposed structure requires 92 parking spaces and one 12-foot by 50-foot 
off-street loading berth.  The proposed facility will satisfy these requirements.

5. Anticipated traffic generation in the context of adjacent roadway capacity and access to 
such roadways. 

The proposed facility anticipates low traffic generation in the context of adjacent roadway 
capacity and access to such roadways because its abutting intersection provides two 
directions of access and it will provide off-street parking segregated from the abutting 
public rights-of-ways with direct access to the facility.  This configuration mitigates 
pedestrian-vehicular conflicts.  In addition, the nature of the Property's business is a low 
traffic generator with a low frequency of visits (as compared to an adult-use cannabis 
dispensary organization) and will result in low user turnover.

6. Site design, including access points and internal site circulation. 

The Property's site design and internal site circulation will comply with applicable law, 
including Peru's building codes and ordinances.  However, the Property will contain one 
secured entry point from the public right-of-way to the proposed facility.  The proposed 
facility's access points will conform with the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act. 

7. Proposed signage plan. 

There will be no signage except surveillance signs because the proposed facility will be 
unmarked. 

8. Compliance with all requirements provided in Section 4.19(d) (Adult-Use Cannabis Craft 
Grower); Section 4.19(e) (Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center); Section 4.19(f) (Adult-
Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization); Section 4.19(g) (Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser 
Organization); Section 4.19(h) (Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization); or Section 
4.19(i) (Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization), as applicable. 

The proposed facility will comply with the aforesaid requirements, as applicable.  Please 
see the attached affidavit affirming such compliance. 

9. Other criteria determined to be necessary to assess compliance with Section 15.12 (Special 
Uses). 

The proposed facility will comply with the aforesaid criteria and requirements, as 
applicable.  Please see the attached affidavit affirming such compliance. 







1 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 4.19 AND 12.03 OF THE CITY 

OF PERU ZONING ORDINANCE TO ALLOW FOR THE CO-LOCATION 

OF ADULT-USE CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENTS AND TO PROVIDE A 

SPECIAL USE FOR ADULT-USE CANNABIS INFUSER 

ORGANIZATIONS AND ADULT-USE CANNABIS TRANSPORTING 

ORGANIZATIONS IN M-2 MANUFACTURING DISTRICTS 

 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2019, the City of Peru, an Illinois home rule municipal 

corporation (hereinafter “City”) duly passed Ordinance No. 6415, entitled: “AN ORDINANCE 

AMENDING THE CITY OF PERU ZONING ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO ADULT-USE 

CANNABIS”, which enacted zoning rules and regulations for adult-use cannabis facilities within 

the City; and 

 WHEREAS, Illinois Kindness Three LLC petitioned the City for text amendments to the 

City Zoning Ordinance to allow for the co-location of any combination of adult-use cannabis 

establishments, and to provide a special use for “Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization” and 

“Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization” in areas of the City zoned M-2 Manufacturing 

District; and 

WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner 

provided by law, the City Planning/Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Illinois 

Kindness Three LLC’s Petition on Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 5:00 p.m., and voted to favorably 

recommend that the City approve the proposed text amendments; and  

WHEREAS,  the Mayor and members of the City Council find, based upon the record, 

including the testimony and evidence presented, that the proposed text amendments are in the best 

interests of the City, are consistent with the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and the intent of 

the M-2 Manufacturing District zoning regulations, will not create non-conformity, and will make 

the Zoning Ordinance more permissive. 



2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  Recitals.  The City Council finds as facts the recitals hereinbefore set forth. 

SECTION 2: Text Amendments – Section 4.19. Article IV – General Provisions, 

Section 4.19. Adult-Use Cannabis, of the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by 

adding the underlined language and deleting the stricken language, as follows: 

4.19. Adult-Use Cannabis. 

 
(a) Purpose and Applicability. It is the intent and purpose of this Section to 

provide regulations regarding the cultivation, processing and dispensing of adult-use 

cannabis occurring within the corporate limits of the City of Peru. Such facilities shall 

comply with all regulations provided in the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act (P.A. 101-

0027) (“Act”), as it may be amended from time-to-time, and regulations promulgated 

thereunder, and the regulations provided below. In the event that the Act is amended, the 

more restrictive of the state or local regulations shall apply. 

 

(b) Special Use. Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment facilities, as 

defined herein, require approval of a special use in the respective districts in which they 

are requested and shall be processed in accordance with Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and 

Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis Facility Components) as provided herein. 

 

(c) Adult-Use Cannabis Facility Components. In determining compliance 

with Section 15.12 (Special Uses), the following components of the Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility shall be evaluated based on the entirety of the circumstances affecting the 

particular property in the context of the existing and intended future use of the properties: 

 

(1) Impact of the proposed facility on existing or planned uses located within 

the vicinity of the subject property. 

 

(2) Proposed structure in which the facility will be located, including co-

tenancy (if in a multi-tenant building), total square footage, security 

installations/security plan and building code compliance. 

 

(3) Hours of operation and anticipated number of customers/employees. 

 

(4) Anticipated parking demand based on Section and available private 

parking supply. 

 

(5) Anticipated traffic generation in the context of adjacent roadway capacity 

and access to such roadways. 

 



3 

 

(6) Site design, including access points and internal site circulation. 

 

(7) Proposed signage plan. 

 

(8) Compliance with all requirements provided in Section 4.19(d) (Adult-Use 

Cannabis Craft Grower); Section 4.19(e) (Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation 

Center); Section 4.19(f)(Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization); 

Section 4.19(g) (Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization); Section 

4.19(h) (Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization); or Section 4.19(i) 

(Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization), as applicable. 

 

(9) Other criteria determined to be necessary to assess compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses). 

 

(d) Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower. In those zoning districts in which an 

Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower may be located, the proposed facility must comply with 

the following: 

 

(1) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing public or private nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary 

school, day care center, day care home or residential care home. Learning 

centers and vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or 

private school for purposes of this Section. 

 

(2) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing property zoned or used for residential purposes, or within 1,500 

feet of another craft grower or cultivation center.  

 

(3) Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than 

as authorized by the Act. 

 

(4) For purposes of determining required parking pursuant to Section 7.03 

(Schedule of parking requirements), Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Growers 

shall be classified as "business and retail uses" per Section 7.03(b)(9) 

provided, however, that the City may require that additional parking be 

provided as a result of the analysis completed through Section 4.19(b) 

(Adult-Use Cannabis: Special Use) herein. 

 

(5) Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility Components) as provided herein and all other requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(e) Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center. In those zoning districts in which 

an Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center may be located, the proposed facility must 

comply with the following: 

 

(1) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing public or private nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary 

school, day care center, day care home or residential care home. Learning 

centers and vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or 



4 

 

private school for purposes of this Section. 

 

(2) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing property zoned or used for residential purposes. 

 

(3) Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than 

as authorized by the Act. 

 

(4) For purposes of determining required parking pursuant to Section 7.03 

(Schedule of parking requirements), Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation 

Centers shall be classified as "business and retail uses" per Section 

7.03(b)(9) provided, however, that the City may require that additional 

parking be provided as a result of the analysis completed through Section 

4.19(b) herein. 

 

(5) Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility Components) as provided herein and all other requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(f) Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization. In those zoning districts in 

which an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization may be located, the proposed 

facility must comply with the following: 

 

(1) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing public or private nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary 

school, day care center, day care home or residential care home. Learning 

centers and vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or 

private school for purposes of this Section. 

 

(2) Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the 

property line of a pre-existing property zoned or used for residential 

purposes, or within 1,500 feet of a pre-existing dispensing organization. 

 

(3) Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than 

as authorized by the Act. 

 

(4) At least 75% of the floor area of any tenant space occupied by a dispensing 

organization shall be devoted to the activities of the dispensing 

organization as authorized by the Act, unless authorized by Section 

4.19(k).  

 

(5) No Cannabis Dispensing Organization shall sell food for consumption on 

the premises, or allow on-site consumption of cannabis, unless authorized 

by permit.  

 

(6) Facility may be issued a permit to host on-site consumption of cannabis if 

located in a freestanding structure occupied solely by the dispensing 

organization and smoke from the facility does not migrate into an enclosed 

area where smoking is prohibited. The security plan for the facility 

required by Section 4.19(j) (Additional Requirements) shall also reflect 



5 

 

adequate provisions to respond to disruptive conduct and over-

consumption. The on-site consumption permit shall be reviewed annually 

and may be suspended or revoked following notice and hearing as 

provided in Section 16.02 of the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance. 

 

(7) For purposes of determining required parking pursuant to Section 7.03 

(Schedule of parking requirements), Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing 

Organizations shall be classified as "business and retail uses" per Section 

7.03(b)(9) provided, however, that the City may require that additional 

parking be provided as a result of the analysis completed through Section 

4.19(b) (Adult-Use Cannabis: Special Use) herein. 

 

(8) Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility Components) as provided herein and all other requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(g) Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization. In those zoning districts in 

which an Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization may be located, the proposed facility 

must comply with the following: 

 

(1) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing public or private nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary 

school, day care center, day care home or residential care home. Learning 

centers and vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or 

private school for purposes of this Section. 

 

(2) Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the 

property line of a pre-existing property zoned or used for residential 

purposes. 

 

(3) Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than 

as authorized by the Act. 

 

(4) At least 75% of the floor area of any tenant space occupied by an infusing 

organization shall be devoted to the activities of the infusing organization 

as authorized by the Act, unless authorized by Section 4.19(k).  

 

(5) For purposes of determining required parking pursuant to Section 7.03 

(Schedule of parking requirements), Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser 

Organizations shall be classified as "Business and retail uses" per Section 

7.03(b)(9) provided, however, that the City may require that additional 

parking be provided as a result of the analysis completed pursuant to 

Section 4.19(b) (Adult-Use Cannabis: Special Use) herein. 

 

(6) Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility Components) as provided herein and all other requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(h) Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization. In those zoning districts in 



6 

 

which an Adult-Use Cannabis Processing Organization may be located, the proposed 

facility must comply with the following: 

 

(1) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing public or private nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary 

school, day care center, day care home or residential care home. Learning 

centers and vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or 

private school for purposes of this Section. 

 

(2) Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the 

property line of a pre-existing property zoned or used for residential 

purposes. 

 

(3) Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than 

as authorized by the Act. 

 

(4) At least 75% of the floor area of any tenant space occupied by a processing 

organization shall be devoted to the activities of the processing 

organization as authorized by the Act, unless authorized by Section 

4.19(k).  

 

(5) For purposes of determining required parking pursuant to Section 7.03 

(Schedule of parking requirements), Adult-Use Cannabis Processing 

Organizations shall be classified as "Business and retail uses" per Section 

7.03(b)(9) provided, however, that the City may require that additional 

parking be provided as a result of the analysis completed through Section 

4.19(b) (Adult-Use Cannabis: Special Use) herein. 

 

(6) Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility Components) as provided herein and all other requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(i) Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization. In those zoning districts 

in which an Adult-Use Transporting Organization may be located, the proposed facility 

must comply with the following: 

 

(1) Facility may not be located within 1,500 feet of the property line of a pre-

existing public or private nursery school, preschool, primary or secondary 

school, day care center, day care home or residential care home. Learning 

centers and vocational/trade centers shall not be classified as a public or 

private school for purposes of this Section. 

 

(2) Facility may not be located in a dwelling unit or within 250 feet of the 

property line of a pre-existing property zoned or used for residential 

purposes. 

 

(3) Facility may not conduct any sales or distribution of cannabis other than 

as authorized by the Act. 

 

(4) The transporting organization shall be the sole use of the tenant space in 



7 

 

which it is located, unless authorized by Section 4.19(k).  

 

(5) For purposes of determining required parking, Adult-Use Cannabis 

Transporting Organizations shall be classified as "business and retail uses" 

per Section 7.03(b)(9) provided, however, that the City may require that 

additional parking be provided as a result of the analysis completed 

through Section 4.19(b) (Adult-Use Cannabis: Special Use) herein. 

 

(6) Petitioner shall file an affidavit with the City affirming compliance with 

Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis 

Facility Components) as provided herein and all other requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(j) Additional Requirements: Petitioner shall install building enhancements, 

such as security cameras, lighting or other improvements, as set forth in the special use 

permit, to ensure the safety of employees and customers of the adult-use cannabis business 

establishments, as well as its environs. Said improvements shall be determined based on 

the specific characteristics of the floor plan for an Adult-Use Cannabis Business 

Establishment and the site on which it is located, consistent with the requirements of the 

Act. 

 

(k) Co-Location of Cannabis Business Establishments. The City may approve 

the co-location of any combination of Adult-Use Cannabis Establishments Dispensing 

Organization with an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower Center or an Adult-Use Cannabis 

Infuser Organization, or both, subject to the provisions of the Act and the City’s Special 

Use criteria. In a co-location, the floor space requirements of Sections 4.19(f)(4), and 

4.19(g)(4), 4.19(h)(4), and 4.19(i)(4) shall not apply, but the co-located Adult-Use 

Cannabis Eestablishments shall be the sole use of the tenant space. 
 

 

SECTION 3: Text Amendments – Section 12.03. Article XII – Manufacturing Districts, 

Section 12.03. M-2, Manufacturing District, of the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance is hereby 

amended by adding the underlined language, as follows: 

*** 

 

 (d) Special uses.  

 

*** 

(13) Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization. Subject to the Adult-Use 

Cannabis provisions set forth in Section 4.19 of this Ordinance. 

 

(14) Adult-Use Cannabis Transporting Organization. Subject to the Adult-Use 

Cannabis provisions set forth in Section 4.19 of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 4: Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to 

any person or circumstances is ruled unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such invalidity shall 



8 

 

not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the 

invalid application or provision, and each invalid provision or invalid application of this Ordinance 

is severable. 

SECTION 5: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage and approval as required by law. 

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting 

nay, ____ absent, and Mayor Harl  ____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 26th day of 

May, 2020.      

APPROVED: May 26, 2020 

  

 

_________________________________ 

Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL)  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

          David Bartley 

         Peru City Clerk 

 

 

 

Aldermen             Aye       Nay     Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton 

Ballard 

Buffo 

 



1 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AS SOUGHT BY THE 

PETITION OF ILLINOIS KINDNESS THREE LLC CONCERNING 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 

OF DONLAR AVENUE AND UNYTITE DRIVE IN THE CITY OF PERU, 

ILLINOIS 

 

 
 WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner provided 

by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a public hearing on May 20, 

2020, to consider the Petition of Illinois Kindness Three LLC praying for a special use under the 

Zoning Ordinance of the City of Peru to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower, Adult-Use 

Cannabis Infuser Organization, and Adult-Use Transporting Organization co-located on property 

generally located on the southeast corner of Donlar Avenue and Unytite Drive in the City of Peru 

Illinois, legally described as follows: 

Lot A in the Subdivision of Lots 1 and 2 in May Road Business Park – 

1, being a Subdivision of part of the West Half of the Southwest 

Quarter of Section 32, Township 34 North, Range 1 East of the Third 

Principal Meridian, according to the Plat of said Subdivision of Lots 1 

and 2 recorded June 12, 2008 as document 2008-13406; SITUATED 

IN LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS  

 

  PIN: 11-32-302-006 (hereinafter “Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

favorably recommended that the requested special use to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower, 

Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser Organization, and Adult-Use Transporting Organization co-located on the 

Property be approved. 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 



2 
 

 SECTION 1:  Illinois Kindness Three LLC is hereby granted a special use under the Zoning 

Ordinance of the City of Peru to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower, Adult-Use Cannabis 

Infuser Organization, and Adult-Use Transporting Organization co-located on the Property. 

  This special use does not waive any building or site permitting requirements. Nothing in this 

Ordinance shall be construed to preempt any private covenants and restrictions that may be applicable to 

the Property. 

 SECTION 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effective immediately from and after its 

passage and approval.   

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting 

nay, ____ absent, and Mayor Harl  ____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 26th day of 

May, 2020.      

APPROVED: May 26, 2020 

  

 

_________________________________ 

Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

(CORPORATE SEAL)  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

David Bartley 

Peru City Clerk 

 

 

Aldermen             Aye       Nay     Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton 

Ballard 

Buffo 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 21, 2020 

    

Mayor Scott J. Harl,  

Peru City Clerk, and 

Aldermen of the City of Peru 

 

RE: Petition of Andrew Lamps 

 Property located North of 38th Street and East of Progress Boulevard, Peru, IL 

 

Gentlemen: 

 

Pursuant to legal notice published in the News Tribune in the manner provided by law, the 

Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru convened for a public hearing on Wednesday, 

May 20, 2020, at 5:15 p.m. in the City Municipal Building, 1901 Fourth Street, Peru, IL, to 

consider the Petition of the Andrew Lamps (hereinafter “Petitioner”) concerning property 

generally located North of 38th Street and East of Progress Boulevard, Peru, IL, legally described 

as follows:  

 

Lot 1 in the Re-Subdivision of Progress Park Third Addition to the 

City of Peru, according to the Plat thereof recorded February 2, 1993 

as Doc. #93-02754, (except coal and other minerals and the right to 

mine and remove the same), situated in the City of Peru, in LaSalle 

County, Illinois.  

 

PIN: 17-04-321-005 (hereinafter, “Property”).  

 

The Petitioner requests a special use under Section 11.05(d)(15) of the Zoning Ordinance 

to allow for an indoor sports and recreational facility on the Property. Petitioner further requests 

the following waivers and variances, to wit:  

(a) A waiver of the stormwater drainage requirements of Section 11.09 of the 

Subdivision and Site Development Regulations Ordinance;  

 

(b) A variance to reduce the side yard setbacks from not less than 20 feet as required 

under Section 11.05(h)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, to not less than 5 feet;  



2 

 

 

(c) A variance from Section 7.04(a) of the Zoning Ordinance to allow grindings as a 

temporary off-street parking area surface; and 

 

(d) For such other and further relief as the Planning/Zoning Commission deems 

appropriate. 

 

The Property is located in a B-4 Highway Business District.   

Planning/Zoning Commission Members Miller, Grabowski, Atkinson, Lucas, Kalsto, 

Brady, and Moreno were present at the hearing. No members were absent. Due to COVID-19, this 

meeting was also streamed live on the internet. 

 

Petitioner Andrew Lamps and his attorney, Nick Balestri, appeared and were duly sworn. 

Petitioner provided the P/Z Commission with a conceptual site plan, a copy of which is attached 

hereto.  

 

Petitioner testified that he wants to construct a sports training facility on the Property. He 

stated that he had changed his plan from what was originally submitted to the City. Petitioner’s 

revised proposal involves a one long 60’x 180’ building situated in a north/south direction on the 

Property. The front training facility section will be 60’ x 80’ and have a height of 10’. Petitioner 

stated there is a local youth art and fitness training business interested using the front section for 

dance and other activities.  

 

Petitioner testified further that he intends to use the rear 60’ x 100’ section as a multisport 

training facility for indoor soccer, baseball practice, and lessons. Petitioner said he is on the Peru 

Little League Board and will offer the facility for Peru Little League free of charge to use during 

the Winter. Petitioner is also affiliated with LP travel baseball and said that travel teams and high 

school kids will be able to use the facility. Petitioner has already spoken to the LP baseball coach 

and he is interested in using the facility during the Winter.  

 

In the future after business gets going, Petitioner plans to construct outdoor batting cages 

and a soccer training area in the back of the Property. Petitioner plans to host birthday parties, 

which he said is a need in the community.  

 

Petitioner testified further that, with the revised plan, he only needs a variance to reduce 

the East side yard setback from not less than 20 feet as required under Section 11.05(h)(3) of the 

Zoning Ordinance, to not less than 6 feet. The revised plan incorporates a runoff holding area in 

the front and rear of the Property, so the requested waiver from the stormwater drainage 

requirements is no longer needed. Petitioner stated there was confusion regarding the requested 

variance to allow grindings as a temporary off-street parking area surface. Petitioner does intend 

to surface the parking lot with asphalt within a year after construction is completed so that variance 

request is not needed. Petitioner noted the concept site plan does not show any handicap parking 

spots, but there would be handicap parking near the front entrance.   

 



3 

 

Petitioner stated that he believes the area needs an indoor sports training facility and he 

picked the City of Peru because he lives here, dedicates his time to Peru Little League baseball, 

and coached LP travel teams. It will be a place for not only local kids to go, but also provide local 

college athletes with a place to train back home.  

 

In response to questioning from Member Brady, Petitioner stated that the facility would be 

a metal pole building.  

 

Chairman Miller stated he thought Petitioner’s proposal was a good idea but said he had 

concerns with the building. The area surrounding the Property is ripe for development. Chairman 

Miller said the City certainly wants to see that area develop but wants those developments to have 

a desirable look and appearance. While there are other metal buildings nearby, those are older 

buildings and there isn’t anything the City can do about it now. Looking at Petitioner’s drawings, 

Chairman Miller stated that Petitioner’s building looked like a simple barn without landscaping or 

much street appearance. Chairman Miller stated he did not have a problem with the setback 

variance but reiterated his concern with the type of building proposed by Petitioner.  

 

Member Kalsto stated she shared Chairman Miller’s concerns and was concerned about 

the building complying with applicable building codes. Petitioner plans to have team practices and 

host birthday parties at the facility, which means there will be large volumes of people on the 

premises. Member Kalsto said it would be difficult for the building to meet accessibility 

requirements, energy codes, and would require large bathrooms. 

 

In response to Chairman Miller regarding the stormwater drainage, City Engineer Eric 

Carls stated that this was the first time that he had seen the revised concept site plan but there does 

appear to be some areas for stormwater runoff. If Petitioner is granted zoning approval, Engineer 

Carls stated his office would work with Petitioner through building and site permitting, where they 

would make sure Petitioner is meeting those requirements.  

 

In response to questioning from City Attorney Scott Schweickert, Petitioner testified that 

the future outdoor training area and batting cages situated in the rear of the Property would not 

involve any buildings or structures that would require setback variances.  

 

In response to Member Brady, Member Kalsto said that, unlike unoccupied storage 

buildings, this building would need to comply with more rigorous building and energy codes. 

Petitioner stated that he intends to do spray foam insulation to meet the applicable code 

requirements.  

 

Chairman Miller made a request for public comment. Alderman Aaron Buffo was present 

at the hearing and stated that he believes an indoor sports complex would be beneficial to the City 

of Peru. In his dream scenario, the complex would allow for games to be played indoors but this 

would be a great start. Alderman Buffo said he coaches for Peru Little League and having a place 

for kids to practice during the Winter is priceless. It would attract people from surrounding 

communities to drop their kids off and dine and shop at nearby Peru businesses. Alderman Buffo 

stated he did not have a concern with the look of the proposed metal building on the Property 

because it wasn’t directly off Route 251 or on a corner lot. Alderman Buffo stated it would also be 



4 

 

nice to have another location to host birthday parties, especially in the Winter. Alderman Buffo 

said Petitioner’s proposal was a great idea and offered his support in favor.  

 

Petitioner’s attorney, Nick Balestri, testified that Petitioner would address the appearance 

of the building if given the opportunity. Attorney Balestri noted the location of the Property was 

near Interstate 80 and would attract people from surrounding cities to drop off their kids to take 

batting practice, to attend birthday parties, or be involved in youth art. Attorney Balestri believed 

the Property was a good location for the facility and would be an asset to the City. 

 

Chairman Miller called for objections. Attorney Jonathan Brandt, after being duly sworn, 

stated that he represents the Barbara Vickrey Trust, Mr. and Mrs. Mark Stoneking, and Madison 

Medical Partners LLC. Attorney Brandt said the presentation of the Petition demonstrates it is 

premature, noting everything had changed from what was originally proposed. Attorney Brandt 

objected to the requested setback variance. The two lots to the west of the Property are prime real 

estate for future sales tax generating developments and are worth almost $400,000. If Petitioner 

constructs a pole building with outdoor batting cages on the Property as proposed, it will destroy 

the value of those lots.  

 

Attorney Brandt testified that 38th Street to Airport Road is going to be another gateway to 

Peru with prime development. His clients own approximately 140 acres in that area. Petitioner 

may have thought the Property was a good location next to the storage units, but that was a mistake 

from 40 years ago that shouldn’t be repeated here to kill prime retail sales tax development. 

Attorney Brandt added that he loves the idea but said it should be located in an industrial park or 

north of I-80 where they can make all the noise they want, not here. He wants the prime retail to 

develop and generate sales tax revenue for the City so it can continue to have the best schools and 

low real estate taxes.  

 

Attorney Brandt testified that, although he does not represent Dr. Garg, he can’t imagine 

he would be thrilled with the noise generated by outdoor batting cages. He suggested that if 

Petitioner could not afford to construct an asphalt parking lot at the onset, Petitioner is never going 

to be able to afford the cost of meeting code and safety requirements. Attorney Brandt reiterated 

that a tin building with an unfinished parking lot, the only one of its kind north of Shooting Park 

Road, would have a chilling effect and discourage future development of the entire corridor of 38th 

Street to Airport Road. 

 

There were no other objectors at the hearing or online. 

 

Petitioner testified that, with respect to the parking lot, he initially requested that because 

he didn’t know when construction of the building would be completed. Petitioner has allowed for 

funds through North Central Bank in Ladd for a parking lot. Upon completion of the building and 

favorable weather, Petitioner said he would construct a parking lot. Petitioner stated he would 

work with the City on improving the appearance of the building. He designed the building based 

on the appearance of surrounding buildings, noting there is another metal building being 

constructed right now by Witczak Brothers on Progress Boulevard. Petitioner said the building 

would be well insulated and he was not concerned about noise.  

 



5 

 

Attorney Balestri testified that Petitioner bought the Property on January 13, 2020 for 

$70,000.00. Prior to that, it was listed on November 10, 2017 for $154,900. Petitioner stated that, 

while it is prime land, surrounding property values have declined considering the previous owner 

sat on the Property for almost three years. Attorney Balestri stated Petitioner would work with the 

City to make the Property appealing and noted that, with two adjacent storage sheds and Rental 

Pros on the corner, there isn’t too much nearby that is appealing. Petitioner wants to have 

something there that will attract people to that location, including people from other communities 

that will spend money in Peru.  

 

Chairman Miller stated he agrees the concept would be a great thing for the City of Peru. 

However, in his opinion, the proposal wasn’t enough to make a recommendation at this point. 

Chairman Miller stated he would like to see the Petition commit to paving the parking lot and 

address the appearance and building code issues. 

 

Member Brady said there is plenty of cleaning up that needs to be done in that area but 

constructing another pole building isn’t going to help. Member Brady thought the concept was 

great but said he could not approve another pole building.  

 

Member Lucas stated he agreed with the other P/Z Commission Members. The concept is 

nice, but he needs to see a nicer building. Member Grabowski concurred.  

 

Chairman Miller moved, and Member Lucas seconded, that the Petition as prayed for be 

not be recommended to the City Council. The motion passed: 6 aye, Member Moreno voting nay, 

and 0 Members absent.     

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CARY MILLER, Chairman of the 

Planning/Zoning Commission  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





1 

 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AND 

VARIANCE AS SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF ANDREW 

LAMPS CONCERNING PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

NORTH OF 38TH STREET AND EAST OF PROGRESS 

BOULEVARD IN THE CITY OF PERU, ILLINOIS 

 

WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner provided 

by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a public hearing on May 20, 

2020 at 5:15 p.m., to consider the Petition of Andrew Lamps (hereinafter, “Petitioner”) concerning 

property generally located North of 38th Street and East of Progress Boulevard in the City of Peru, 

Illinois, legally described as follows: 

Lot 1 in the Re-Subdivision of Progress Park Third Addition to the City of 

Peru, according to the Plat thereof recorded February 2, 1993 as Doc. #93-

02754, (except coal and other minerals and the right to mine and remove the 

same), situated in the City of Peru, in LaSalle County, Illinois. 

 

PIN: 17-04-321-005 (hereinafter, “Property”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Petitioner prays for a special use to allow for an indoor sports and recreational 

facility on the Property and requests a variance to reduce the East side yard setback from not less than 

20 feet as required under Section 11.05(h)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, to not less than 6 feet. 

WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

recommended that the City Council not approve Petitioner’s requested special use for an indoor sports 

and recreational facility or side yard setback variance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  RECITALS. The City Council of the City finds as facts the recitals 

hereinbefore set forth. 



2 

 

SECTION 2:  SPECIAL USE & VARIANCE.  The Property is hereby granted a special 

use under the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Peru for an indoor sports and recreational facility. The 

Property is hereby granted a variance to reduce the East side yard setback from not less than 20 feet as 

required under Section 11.05(h)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, to not less than 6 feet. Nothing in this 

Ordinance shall be construed to preempt any private covenants and restrictions that may be applicable 

to the Property. 

SECTION 3: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and approval according to law.  

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with _____ voting aye, ______ voting nay, 

_______ absent, and Mayor Harl___ voting, which meeting was held on the 26th day of May, 2020.   

APPROVED:  May 26, 2020 

 

 

_________________________________ 

        Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

David R. Bartley, City Clerk 

 
 

Aldermen       Aye             Nay Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton  

Ballard 

Buffo      

 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

May 21, 2020 

    

Mayor Scott J. Harl,  

Peru City Clerk, and 

Aldermen of the City of Peru 

 

RE: Petition of the Jonathan Chamlin d/b/a Vermillion Partners 

 Property located at 2700 May Road, Peru, IL 

 

Gentlemen: 

 

Pursuant to legal notice published in the News Tribune in the manner provided by law, the 

Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru convened for a public hearing on Wednesday, May 20, 

2020, at 5:30 p.m. in the City Municipal Building, 1901 Fourth Street, Peru, IL, to consider the Petition of 

Jonathan Chamlin d/b/a Vermillion Partners (hereinafter “Petitioner”) concerning property generally 

located at 2700 May Road, Peru, IL, legally described as follows:  

 

PARCEL I: That part of the East 25 acres of the North 50 acres of the West Half of 

the Northwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 33 North, Range 1, East of the Third 

Principal Meridian lying and being North of the North boundary line of Interstate 

Route 80 in the County of LaSalle and State of Illinois being more particularly 

bounded and described as follows and bearings are for the purpose of description only: 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 5, 

thence North 89 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East along the North line of the 

Northwest Quarter of said Section 5 a distance of 1167.03 feet to an iron pipe and the 

point of beginning of the tract to be described: thence South 00 degrees 19 minutes 14 

seconds West 363.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 89 degrees 52 minutes 16 

seconds East 150.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 0 degrees 19 minutes 14 

seconds East 363.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 89 degrees 52 minutes 16 

seconds West 150.00 feet to the point of beginning; all situated in LaSalle County, 

Illinois 

PARCEL II: An ingress/egress and sign easements for the benefit of Parcel I as 

reserved in Warranty Deed dated July 1, 1999 recorded July 6, 1999 as Document No. 

0099-17411 made by Donald L. Baker and Anne M. Baker, Grantors, to Robert J. 

Lenz, Grantee, together with the rights and obligations thereunder. 

PIN: 17-05-111-000 (hereinafter “Property”). 



2 
 

            Petitioner, with consent of the Property owner, requests a special use under Section 11.05(d)(27) of 

the Zoning Ordinance to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing Organization on the Property, which 

is located in a B-4 Highway District. 

 

Planning/Zoning Commission Members Miller, Grabowski, Atkinson, Lucas, Kalsto, Brady, and 

Moreno were present at the hearing. No members were absent. Due to COVID-19, this meting was also 

streamed live on the internet.  

 

Petitioner Jonathan Chamlin and his attorney, Jonathan Brandt, appeared and were duly sworn. 

Petitioner previously submitted an Affidavit affirming compliance with Section 15.12 (Special Uses) and 

Section 4.19(c) (Adult-Use Cannabis Facility Components) of the Zoning Ordinance, a copy of which is 

attached hereto.  

 

After a brief discussion in consultation with City Attorney Scott Schweickert and City Engineer 

Eric Carls, it was determined the Property is indeed located in a B-4 Highway Business District.  

 

Attorney Brandt testified that if the City approved the request special use, the next step would be 

for the State of Illinois to approve. The City would still have control over the Property with approving 

design and occupancy. The exact plans of the building will be drawn in conformance with the requirements 

of the State of Illinois, which are much more stringent than the City of Peru’s ordinances. The existing 

building on the Property is already in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Attorney Brandt testified further that the only concern made known to him is whether there would 

be enough parking. The City Zoning Ordinance requires one parking spot for every 300 square feet of 

building space. This building is approximately 4,800 square feet and equates to 16 parking spaces. There 

are currently 68 regular parking spaces and 4 handicap parking spaces on the Property. There is also room 

for 20-22 more parking spaces if necessary. However, he believes the existing 72 spaces will be more than 

adequate.  

 

Attorney Brandt stated it was his understanding that the City was in favor of having a cannabis 

dispensary for orderly progression of the law and for sales tax revenue but wanted it north of I-80. This 

Property is the perfect location. The anticipated sales based on other nearby dispensaries are $2-5 million 

annually and would generate $60,000 -$150,000 in sales tax for the City annually. 

 

In response to questioning from Member Grabowski, Petitioner stated that licenses were scheduled 

to be awarded by the State of Illinois on May 1st but the COVID-19 pandemic delayed that indefinitely. 

Petitioner stated that they might be awarded June 1st now.  

 

Member Moreno said that Attorney Brandt addressed the parking issue but expressed hope that 

parking will need to be expanded in the future because that means the business is successful. 

 

In response to questioning from Member Lucas, Petitioner testified that, due to the limited number 

of dispensaries, parking has been a problem at other dispensary locations. That is why he chose this location. 

Petitioner testified that state law requires medical marijuana patients and adult-use cannabis customers be 

separated inside the building. The size of this building is more than enough to handle the anticipated 

customer foot traffic.  

 

In response to questioning from Chairman Miller, Petitioner testified that the state limits hours of 

operation to between 8 a.m. and 9 p.m. However, most dispensaries are open from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. Petitioner 

added that state imposes incredible regulations to ensure these dispensaries are dignified.  In response to 

further questioning from Chairman Miller, Petitioner testified that there are still only 72 dispensaries in the 



3 
 

State of Illinois. He has seen that customers in some collar counties will drive downstate to wait in a 30-

minute line rather than wait in a four-hour line there. As the state approves more locations, the amount of 

customer traffic will normalize.  

 

Member Moreno stated that he believes this location is perfect for a dispensary and will not have 

the same parking issues he has seen in Ottawa. Petitioner added that this location gets cars off the street and 

has enough square footage that people will not be waiting outside in a line.  

 

There were no objectors at the hearing.  

 

The Planning/Zoning Commission found that the requested special use will not alter the essential 

character of the locality; will not be detrimental or injurious to other properties in the area; will not impair 

an adequate supply of light or air to adjacent properties, or increase the danger of fire, or endanger the 

public safety, or diminish or impair property values and will not increase street congestion and, therefore, 

recommends to the City Council that the special uses be granted. 

 

Member Moreno moved, and Member Grabowski seconded, that the Petition as prayed for be 

favorably recommended to the City Council. The motion passed: 6 aye, Member Kalsto voting nay, and 0 

Members absent.     

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CARY MILLER, Chairman of the 

Planning/Zoning Commission  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















1 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AS SOUGHT BY THE 

PETITION OF JONATHAN CHAMLIN D/B/A VERMILLION PARTNERS 

CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2700 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL 

 

 

 WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner provided 

by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a public hearing on May 20, 

2020, to consider the Petition of Jonathan Chamlin d/b/a Vermillion Partners praying for a special use 

under the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Peru to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing 

Organization on property located at 2700 May Road in the City of Peru, Illinois, legally described as 

follows: 

PARCEL I: That part of the East 25 acres of the North 50 acres of the West Half 

of the Northwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 33 North, Range 1, East of the 

Third Principal Meridian lying and being North of the North boundary line of 

Interstate Route 80 in the County of LaSalle and State of Illinois being more 

particularly bounded and described as follows and bearings are for the purpose of 

description only: 

Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 5, 

thence North 89 degrees 52 minutes 16 seconds East along the North line of the 

Northwest Quarter of said Section 5 a distance of 1167.03 feet to an iron pipe and 

the point of beginning of the tract to be described: thence South 00 degrees 19 

minutes 14 seconds West 363.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 89 degrees 52 

minutes 16 seconds East 150.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence North 0 degrees 19 

minutes 14 seconds East 363.00 feet to an iron pipe; thence South 89 degrees 52 

minutes 16 seconds West 150.00 feet to the point of beginning; all situated in 

LaSalle County, Illinois 

 

PARCEL II: An ingress/egress and sign easements for the benefit of Parcel I as 

reserved in Warranty Deed dated July 1, 1999 recorded July 6, 1999 as Document 

No. 0099-17411 made by Donald L. Baker and Anne M. Baker, Grantors, to 

Robert J. Lenz, Grantee, together with the rights and obligations thereunder. 

 

PIN: 17-05-111-000 (hereinafter “Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

favorably recommended that the requested special use to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensing 

Organization on the Property be approved. 



2 

 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1:  Jonathan Chamlin d/b/a Vermillion Partners is hereby granted a special use 

under Section 11.05 of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Peru to operate an Adult-Use Cannabis 

Dispensing Organization on the Property. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to preempt any 

private covenants and restrictions that may be applicable to the Property. 

 SECTION 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effective immediately from and after 

its passage and approval.   

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting nay, ____ 

absent, and Mayor Harl  ____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 26th day of May, 2020.      

APPROVED: May 26, 2020 

  

 

_________________________________ 

Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

(CORPORATE SEAL)  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

David Bartley 

Peru City Clerk 

 

 

Aldermen             Aye       Nay     Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton 

Ballard 

Buffo 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 21, 2020 

    

Mayor Scott J. Harl,  

Peru City Clerk, and 

Aldermen of the City of Peru 

 

RE: Petition of the City of Peru 

 2650 North Peoria Street, Peru, IL 

 

 

Gentlemen: 

 

Pursuant to legal notice published in the News Tribune in the manner provided by law, the 

Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru convened for a public hearing on Wednesday, May 20, 

2020, at 5:45 p.m. in the City Municipal Building, 1901 Fourth Street, Peru, IL, to consider the Petition of 

the City of Peru, an Illinois home rule municipal corporation (hereinafter, “Petitioner”), concerning 

property located at 2650 North Peoria Street in the City of Peru, Illinois, legally described as follows:  

 

Lot 2 in the Ernat First Commercial Addition to the City of Peru, LaSalle County, 

Illinois.  

 

PIN: 17-08-420-002 (hereinafter “Property”). 

 

 Petitioner desires to construct a police station on the Property, which is located in a B-4 Highway 

Business District, and requests a text amendment to Section 11.05(d) of the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance 

to add “Public buildings erected by a governmental entity” as a special use, and further requests approval 

of said special use for that purpose. 

 

 Petitioner further requests the following variances, to wit:  

 

(a) To reduce the minimum front yard setback along Midtown Road from not less than forty 

feet (40') as required under Section 11.05(h)(1) of the Zoning Ordinance to not less than 

twenty-three feet (23'); and 

 

(b) For such other and further relief as the Planning/Zoning Commission deems appropriate. 

 

Planning/Zoning Commission Members Miller, Grabowski, Atkinson, Lucas, Kalsto, Brady, and 

Moreno were present at the hearing. No members were absent. Due to COVID-19, this meeting was also 

streamed live on the internet.  

 



2 
 

City Engineer Eric Carls provided the Planning/Zoning Commission with conceptual renderings, 

drawings and site plans for the proposed police station, copies of which are attached hereto.  

 

In response to questioning from Member Grabowski, Engineer Carls stated the maximum 

construction cost for the Police Station is $16.3 million.  

 

There were no objectors at the hearing.  

 

Member Lucas moved, and Member Moreno seconded, that the requested text amendment adding 

“Public buildings erected by a governmental entity” as a special use to B-4 Highway Business Districts be 

favorably recommended to the City Council. The motion passed unanimously: 6 aye, 0 nay, Member Kalsto 

abstaining, and 0 Members absent.     

 

The Planning/Zoning Commission found that the requested special use will not alter the essential 

character of the locality; will not be detrimental or injurious to other properties in the area; will not impair 

an adequate supply of light or air to adjacent properties, or increase the danger of fire, or endanger the 

public safety, or diminish or impair property values and will not increase street congestion and, therefore, 

recommends to the City Council that the special use be granted. 

 

Member Grabowski moved, and Member Atkinson seconded, that the requested special use as 

prayed for be favorably recommended to the City Council. The motion passed unanimously: 6 aye, 0 nay, 

Member Kalsto abstaining, and 0 Members absent.     

 

Member Lucas moved, and Chairman Miller seconded, that the requested variance as prayed for 

be favorably recommended to the City Council. The motion passed unanimously: 6 aye, 0 nay, Member 

Kalsto abstaining, and 0 Members absent.     

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CARY MILLER, Chairman of the 

Planning/Zoning Commission  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















1 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 11.05 OF THE CITY OF PERU 

ZONING ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE A SPECIAL USE FOR PUBLIC 

BUILDINGS ERECTED BY A GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY IN B-4 

HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICTS 

 

WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner 

provided by law, the City Planning/Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 

Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 5:45 p.m., to consider the Petition of the City of Peru, an Illinois 

home rule municipal corporation, praying for a text amendment to Section 11.05(d) of the City of 

Peru Zoning Ordinance to add a special use for “Public buildings erected by a governmental entity” 

in B-4 Highway Business Districts; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

unanimously recommended that the requested text amendment be approved; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and members of the City Council find, based upon the record, 

including the testimony and evidence presented, that the proposed text amendments are in the best 

interests of the City, are consistent with the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and the intent of 

the B-4 Highway Business District zoning regulations, will not create non-conformity, and will 

make the Zoning Ordinance more permissive. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1:  Recitals.  The City Council finds as facts the recitals hereinbefore set forth. 

SECTION 2: Text Amendment – Section 11.05(d). Article XI – Business Districts, 

Section 11.05 B-4 Highway Business District, Subsection (d) Special uses, of the City of Peru 



2 

 

Zoning Ordinance, shall be and is hereby amended to add: “(33)  Public buildings erected by a 

governmental entity” as a special use. 

SECTION 3: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage and approval as required by law. 

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting 

nay, ____ absent, and Mayor Harl  ____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 26th day of 

May, 2020.      

APPROVED: May 26, 2020 

  

 

_________________________________ 

Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL)  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

          David Bartley 

         Peru City Clerk 

 

 

 

Aldermen             Aye       Nay     Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton 

Ballard 

Buffo 

 



1 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO_______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE AND VARIANCE AS 

SOUGHT BY THE PETITION OF THE CITY OF PERU CONCERNING 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2650 NORTH PEORIA STREET, PERU, IL  

 

 

 WHEREAS, after legal ad notice duly published in the News Tribune in the manner provided 

by law, the Planning/Zoning Commission of the City of Peru conducted a public hearing on May 20, 

2020 at 5:45 p.m., to consider the Petition of the City of Peru, and Illinois home rule municipal 

corporation, praying for a special use and variance under the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Peru as 

it applies to property located at 2650 North Peoria Street in the City of Peru, Illinois, legally described 

as follows: 

Lot 2 in the Ernat First Commercial Addition to the City of Peru,  

La Salle County, Illinois. 

 

P.I.N.: 17-08-420-002 (hereinafter “Property”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Peru desires to construct a police station on the Property, which is 

located in a B-4 Highway Business District, and prays for the following: 

(1) A special use under Section 11.05(d)(33) of the Zoning Ordinance; and 

 

(2) A variance to reduce the minimum front yard setback along Midtown Road from not 

less than forty feet (40'), as required under Section 11.05(h)(1) of the Zoning 

Ordinance, to not less than twenty-three feet (23'); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning/Zoning Commission has made its report of the hearing and has 

unanimously recommended that the requested special use and variance be approved. 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1:  The City of Peru is hereby granted a special use under Section 11.05(d)(33) of 

the City of Peru Zoning Ordinance to construct a police station on the Property. The City of Peru is 



2 
 

further granted a variance to reduce the Property’s minimum front yard setback along Midtown Road 

from not less than forty feet (40'), as required under Section 11.05(h)(1) of the Zoning Ordinance, to 

not less than twenty-three feet (23'). 

 SECTION 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effective immediately from and after 

its passage and approval.   

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting nay, ____ 

absent, and Mayor Harl  ____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 26th day of May, 2020.      

APPROVED: May 26, 2020 

  

 

_________________________________ 

Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

(CORPORATE SEAL)  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

David Bartley 

Peru City Clerk 

 

 

Aldermen             Aye       Nay     Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton 

Ballard 

Buffo 



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ISSUE 

TEMPORARY CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 

TO CITY BUSINESSES FOR THE DURATION OF THE COVID-19 

GUBERNATORIAL DISASTER PROCLAMATION  
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Peru (hereinafter “City”) is a home rule unit of government and 

pursuant to Article 7, Section 6(a), of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, may exercise any 

power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois issued a disaster 

proclamation due to the impact of the COVID-19 virus; and  

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois issued Executive 

Order 2020-07 in response to COVID-19, which prohibited all gatherings of 50 people or more 

and ordered all Illinois businesses to suspend service of food or beverages for on-premises 

consumption through March 30, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois issued Executive 

Order 2020-10 in response to COVID-19, extending the restrictions imposed by Executive Order 

2020-07 through April 7, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois issued Executive Order 

2020-18 in response to COVID-19, extending the restrictions imposed by the forgoing Executive 

Orders through April 30, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois issued Executive 

Order 2020-33 in response to COVID-19, extending the restrictions imposed by the forgoing 

Executive Orders through May 29, 2020; and  

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois announced a five-phase 



2 

 

“Restore Illinois” plan designed to provide a framework to safely reopen Illinois businesses; and   

WHEREAS, on May 20, 2020, the Governor of the State of Illinois announced various 

modifications to the guidelines in Phase 3 (Recovery) of the “Restore Illinois” plan anticipated to 

begin May 29, 2020, including allowing restaurants and bars to resume operation for outdoor 

seating only with masks and social distancing measures, and encouraged municipalities to help 

restaurants and bars expand their outdoor seating options; and  

WHEREAS, the City typically requires restaurants and bars desiring to use City right-of-

way to complete a Right-of-Way Encroachment License Application and execute a License 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, in the interest of expeditiously responding to the Governor’s directives and 

assisting City restaurants and bars, the City Council finds and determines it is in the best interest 

of the City and its residents to temporarily suspend formal procedural requirements for City right-

of-way encroachment licenses and to authorize the Mayor to issue temporary City right-of-way 

encroachment permits to City businesses during the duration of the COVID-19 Gubernatorial 

Disaster Proclamation, as provided herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PERU, LASALLE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1:  Recitals. The City Council finds as facts the recitals hereinbefore set forth, 

and hereby incorporates them herein by reference. 

SECTION 2:  Temporary Suspension of Certain Procedural Requirements. For the 

duration of the COVID-19 Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation, the formal procedural requirements 

for City right-of-way encroachment licenses, including the provisions contained in Section 94-4. – 



3 

 

Licenses for public right-of-way encroachments, of the City Code of Ordinances, and the need to 

enter into a license agreement, are hereby suspended.  

  SECTION 3:  Authorization. For the duration of the COVID-19 Gubernatorial Disaster 

Proclamation, the Mayor, in his capacity as the City’s designated Local Liquor Control 

Commissioner, and after consultation with the City’s Police Chief, Fire Chief, and Fire Marshall; is 

hereby authorized to issue temporary City right-of-way encroachment permits to City businesses.  

 SECTION 4:   Temporary City Right-of-Way Encroachment Permits.  Temporary 

City right-of-way encroachment permits issued by the Mayor pursuant to this Resolution are 

subject to the following terms and conditions: 

(a) Requests for a temporary City right-of-way encroachment permit shall be made to the 

City in writing and signed by the business applicant and property owner, and shall 

include a detailed description of proposed encroachment, dimensions from property 

boundary lines, and the means and methods of installation, if applicable. 

 

(b) The Mayor or his designee may establish any terms and conditions deemed necessary 

before issuance of a temporary City right-of-way encroachment permit, including proof 

of insurance. 

 

(c) Any temporary City right-of-way encroachment permit issued pursuant to this 

Resolution shall be terminable at will by the Mayor or City Council for any reason and, 

if terminated, the property owner shall immediately remove all encroachments within 

the City right-of-way. 

 

(d) The issuance of a temporary City right-of-way encroachment permit does not grant any 

property rights to the business applicant or property owner. 

 

(e) The business applicant and property owner, jointly and severally, shall be solely 

responsible for any and all encroachments of the City right-of-way and shall indemnify 

and hold the City harmless from any liability with respect thereto.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

SECTION 5:   Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately from 

and after passage and approval. 

PRESENTED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of 

the City of Peru, Illinois, by an aye and nay roll call vote, with ____ voting aye, ____ voting 

nay, ____ absent, and Mayor Harl _____ voting _____, which meeting was held on the 26th day 

of May, 2020.    

 

                                               APPROVED: May 26, 2020 

                                            

       ________________________________ 

                                                                                         Scott J. Harl, Mayor 

 

 

(CORPORATE SEAL) 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

             David R. Bartley 

                   City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Aldermen  Aye Nay Absent 

Ferrari 

Waldorf 

Lukosus 

Radtke 

Sapienza 

Payton 

Ballard 

Buffo 

        


	Agenda 052620
	TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020
	MINUTES
	COMMITTEE REPORTS      ALDERMEN
	PROCLAMATIONS
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT


	Special Meeting 050420
	UPUBLIC COMMENT
	UMINUTES

	Regular Meeting Minutes 051120
	All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.
	UPUBLIC COMMENT
	UPRESENTATION
	Mayor Harl asked to resume the presentation by Leopardo regarding the proposed police station.
	City Engineer Eric Carls asked for council Q & A session.
	Alderman Radtke asked Police Chief Bernabei what level of involvement we have had from the police department between the police chief and the officers and what kind of buy in do we have in terms of the building and design. Chief Bernabei thanked Alder...
	Police Chief Doug Bernabei commended City Engineer Eric Carls for his efforts and acknowledged the expertise of Basalay Cary and Alstadt and MWL. Police Chief Doug Bernabei stated he is excited for the generations to come.
	Alderman Lukosus thanked City Engineer Eric Carls for his considerable efforts and acknowledged this is a legacy project for all of us.
	Alderman Waldorf thanked City Engineer Eric Carls and Finance Officer Justin Miller for their efforts.
	Alderman Payton thanked the professionals of Leopardo, Basalay Cary and Alstadt and MWL.
	Alderman Buffo stated as a former police officer, he is impressed with the thought process put into the design.
	Treasurer Powell asked about square footage 32,000 was reported by Ms. McMillen.
	Mayor Harl asked Finance Officer Justin Miller to outline the recent bond savings. Finance Officer Justin Miller noted approximately $1,000,000 per year of bond payments that have recently been retired. Mayor Harl also noted the annual savings of near...
	City Engineer Eric Carls detailed the process through a needs analysis for space based on a question from Treasurer Jackson Powell.
	Finance Officer Justin discussed finance options with bonding in separate segments or borrowing in separate segments.
	Alderman Radtke expressed his confidence in the city’s policies enacted to support the financial commitment.
	Finance Officer Justin Miller noted our Moody’s AA3 rating and noted the following funding options:
	 Traditional bonding
	 Working with local banks
	Alderman Payton stated he supports local fund option.
	City Engineer Eric Carls stated he strongly believes that this is a local stimulus project and the timing for bidding should be very favorable.
	UREPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
	UPROCLAMATIONS
	Clerk Bartley presented a proposed proclamation proclaiming May 17-23, 2020 as Safe Boating Week. Alderman Ferrari made a motion the proclamation be received and placed on file. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion; motion carried.
	UUNFINISHED BUSINESS
	UNEW BUSINESS
	Alderman Lukosus reported the annual TBM Avengers event is being moved to Terra Haute, IN for one year due to COVID-19.

	General & Misc Funds Report-Mar 2020
	Sales Tax Report-Feb20
	Utility Fund Report-Mar 2020
	PVAS Report
	Page 1

	Disbursements 05.27.20
	Peru Dwntwn_draft RDA w-X-ercise Science
	X-ercise_Ord approve RDA
	CITY OF PERU
	ABSTAIN / ABSENT
	NAY VOTE
	AYE VOTE
	CORPORATE AUTHORITIES
	Tony Ferrari
	Jeff Ballard

	Peru Downtown TIF_Ord Approve IGA w-IVCC
	Peru Dwntwn TIF_IGA w-IVCC
	ROW Land Ded Ord
	IL Kindness Minutes
	IL Kindness Ord. Amend Zoning 4.19 & 12.03
	IL Kindness Special Use Ord
	Lamps Minutes
	Lamps Special Use & Variance Ord
	Chamlin Minutes
	Chamlin Special Use Ord
	City of Peru Minutes
	City of Peru Ord
	COP Special Use Police Station Ord
	Temp ROW Permits Resolution

